South Burnett Heritage Study

Final Report South Burnett Regional Council September 2016











Converge Heritage + Community

Contact details are:

Simon Gall

Converge Heritage + Community

ABN:71 366 535 889

PO Box 1974, Pialba, Queensland, 4655

Tel: (07) 4124 1938

Email: sgall@convergehc.com.au

Copyright © 2016

Document Verification	
Project	South Burnett region Heritage Study
Project Number	16004C
Document Title	16004C South Burnett Region Heritage Study_DRAFT_Final Report_290416
File Location	SharePoint\16004C South Burnett Region Heritage Study\Reporting
Client	South Burnett Regional Council

Version history				
Revision	Date	Nature of revision	Prepared by	Authorised by
0	29/04/2016	Draft	CB UO	СВ
1	07/09/2016	Final	СВ	СВ
2				



Contents

1	Introduction	1
1.1	Project Background	1
1.2	Purpose of this Report	1
1.3	Methodology	1
1.4	Limitations	1
1.5	Study Timing	2
1.6	Personnel	2
2	Review	3
2.1	Heritage Register Searches	3
	2.1.1 Statutory Registers	3
	2.1.2 Non-Statutory Registers	8
2.2	Previous Studies	9
	2.2.1 Thematic Histories	9
	2.2.2 Previous Heritage Studies	17
	2.2.3 Other Resources	19
2.3	Consultation	19
2.4	Conclusion and Gaps	21
2.5	Short List of Places	22
3	Recommended List of Places	35
3.1	Field Survey	35
3.2	Research and Analysis	35
3.3	Assessment of Significance	35
3.4	Recommended Places	36
3.5	Further Stages of Work	38
4	Recommendations	40
Арре	endix - The Long List	41
Appe	endix - Response to Submissions	94



List of Tables

Table 1: QHR places in the South Burnett LGA	3
Table 2: Former Kingaroy Planning Scheme listings	
Table 3: Former Murgon Planning Scheme listings	5
Table 4: Former Nanango Planning Scheme listings.	6
Table 5: Former Wondai Planning Scheme listings.	8
Table 6: Place listed on the Register of the National Estate only.	8
Table 7: Historic themes and subthemes associated with key activities and places	10
Table 8: Stakeholder Consultation.	19
Table 9: The Short List of Places	23
Table 10: Recommended list of places	36
Table 11: Long list. Note initials in 'Historic Society / Stakeholder' column should be cross-with the consultation table in this report	



1 Introduction

1.1 Project Background

The South Burnett Regional Council (hereafter 'Council') is currently preparing a new planning scheme. As part of this process, Council required the preparation of a local heritage study and a recommended local heritage register to ensure it meets its obligations under the State Planning Policy and the *Queensland Heritage Act 1992*.

1.2 Purpose of this Report

This is the final report for the project and it provides the recommended local heritage register, the methodology adopted to determine the register, recommendations for the management of the places within the planning scheme and further stages of work. The place cards that constitute the ultimate outcome of the study are provided separately.

1.3 Methodology

The following dot points outline the methodology. The following chapters in the report provide the results of its implementation:

- The study began with a review of existing information, including statutory and non-statutory heritage registers, databases, lists and previous studies, and consultation with key stakeholders. The purpose of the review was the production of a 'long list' of potential local heritage places. The long list includes places entered on the Queensland Heritage Register and the Commonwealth Heritage Register (where relevant).
- Following the review, a 'short list' of places was prepared for field work. The selection of places
 was based on whether places reflected the key historical themes for the region, if the place could
 be located and if it was reasonably expected that sufficient information could be obtained within
 the project timeframe to adequately assess the place's significance.
- The field work was then undertaken. The purpose of the field work was to physically examine each place, determine its integrity and condition, and take photographs. Places were also added to the long list if identified during field work and not already included in the list.
- Following the field work, a smaller, refined list of places was prioritised for further research and assessment of significance. The assessment consisted of the preparation of histories, physical descriptions, and a statement of significance for each place. A place card was then prepared for each place using a purpose-built Microsoft Access database.
- A final report (this report) was prepared to outline the methodology and results for all stages of the study. The final long list is provided as an appendix.
- Responses to submissions made by owners are included in this report as an appendix.

A heritage tourism strategy was also prepared in tandem with the completion of the heritage study. The strategy utilises the places recommended in this report and is mentioned in the recommendations at the conclusion of this report.

1.4 Limitations

The purpose of the study was to prepare a register of places of local heritage significance for the South Burnett region. The study does not refer to:

Aboriginal cultural heritage: this is managed under different legislation and in a different manner
to local heritage places. Nonetheless, it is important to note that local heritage places identified
in the study may also be significant to Aboriginal people.



- Neighbourhood character: although heritage can be a component 'character' is more about the
 overall aesthetic values or contribution of a particular streetscape or suburb, rather than
 'heritage', which is assessed according to heritage criteria. Character studies typically concentrate
 on aesthetic components of an area such as roof types, facades and general setting rather than
 particular places.
- Landscape heritage: specific heritage places may have a landscape component (for example, a
 pastoral station or a park), but landscape heritage is typically used to describe a broader landscape
 that represents historical or natural processes across time. Landscape heritage in this respect is
 similar to character in that it does not necessarily focus on a particular place and, consequently, it
 is outside of the scope of the local heritage study.

It is also impracticable to identify and assess every potential place of local heritage significance within a particular study because the timeframe and associated costs would be substantial. There are other logistical issues that also impact the number of places that can be assessed. Consequently, the recommended list of places presented in this report is not comprehensive; rather, it is a list of places that reflect important historical themes, were accessible and were supported by sufficient historical information to enable an assessment of significance within the project budget and timeframe.

Although this point must be stated as a limitation, heritage registers and overlays naturally evolve as more places are identified and assessed through community consultation and further stages of work. Indeed, establishing a register or overlay often raises community awareness of heritage in the region and in our experience results in heritage overlays developing and being added to over time.

Nonetheless, it is considered that the recommended local heritage register presented in this report reflects the history of the region and forms an excellent basis to acknowledge the places that contributed to, and continue to reflect, that history.

1.5 Study Timing

The study commenced on 22 July 2015 and was completed at end of April 2016. Notification of the recommended heritage register occurred in June, with owner consultation taking place in July.

1.6 Personnel

The study was prepared by Dr Craig Barrett and Ulrike Oppermann, with the assistance of Simon Gall, Director, Converge Heritage + Community.



2 Review

The following chapter reflects the results of work undertaken in the review phase of the project. Apart from small changes or updates, it appears as it did in August 2015 when the review was completed.

2.1 Heritage Register Searches

Heritage register searches of both statutory and non-statutory registers were undertaken to identify places of heritage significance in the South Burnett region that have already been listed. The key statutory and non-statutory registers accessed for the review were:

- World, National and Commonwealth Heritage Lists.
- Queensland Heritage Register (QHR).
- Current South Burnett planning schemes.
- National Trust Queensland Register (NTQ) non-statutory.
- Register of the National Estate archive (RNE) non-statutory.

<u>There are no places in the South Burnett entered on the World, National or Commonwealth Heritage</u> Lists.

The following sections provide the results of the remaining register searches.

2.1.1 Statutory Registers

Queensland Heritage Register

Seventeen places are listed on the QHR for the South Burnett local government area. An application for inclusion of one further place is currently assessed by the Department of Environment and Heritage Protection (EHP).

Table 1: QHR places in the South Burnett LGA.

Place ID#	Name	Address	Suburb
600967	Boondooma Homestead	Mundubbera-Durong Road	Wondai
600648	Burrandowan Station Homestead	Kingaroy Road / Burra Burri Road	Kingaroy
601901	Carroll Cottage	6 Edward Street	Kingaroy
602747	King's Boarding House (former)	Maidenwell-Cooyar Road	Maidenwell
602809	Kingaroy Butter Factory (former)	67 William Street	Kingaroy
602764	Kingaroy Peanut Silos	117-131 Haly Street	Kingaroy
602810	Kingaroy Shire Council Chambers (former)	Haly Street	Kingaroy
602812	Murgon Civic Centre	62-70 Lamb Street	Murgon
650003 ¹	Murgon State School	91 Gore Street	Murgon
602525	Nanango Butter Factory Building	George Street	Nanango
601571	Nanango Court House	30 Henry Street	Nanango

¹ Current application for inclusion in QHR.





Place ID#	Name	Address	Suburb
602813	Shepherd Memorial Church of St Peter	Cnr Drake Street and Wondai Road	Proston
602811	South Burnett Co-operative Dairy Association Factory (former)	Macalister Street	Murgon
602763	St Michael and All Angels Church	2-6 Alford Street	Kingaroy
600647	Taabinga Homestead	7 Old Taabinga Road (108 Flagstone Creek Road)	Kingaroy (Kumbia)
601123	Taromeo Homestead Complex and Cemetery	Off D'Aguilar Highway / Taromeo Road	Benarkin
600759	Tarong Homestead	Cooyar Road	Tarong
600646	Wylarah	South Burrandowan Road	Kingaroy

Current Planning Schemes

The current planning schemes include lists of places of cultural heritage significance (under Schedule 6 – Non Indigenous Cultural Heritage Sites Listings for each scheme). The list does not include any detail about the places beyond an address, in particular why each place is significant.

Kingaroy

There are twenty-six places listed on the former Kingaroy Shire Planning Scheme. Eight of these places are also listed on the QHR, five on NTQ register and seven on the RNE.

Table 2: Former Kingaroy Planning Scheme listings.

Name	Address	Suburb	Other listings
Bethany	218 Peterson Drive	Kingaroy	
Bethany Lutheran Church	83 Youngman Street	Kingaroy	
Booie Cemetery	Radunzs Road	Booie	
Broadway Hotel	153/155 Kingaroy Street	Kingaroy	
Burrandowan Homestead	Burra Burri Road	Kingaroy	QHR, NTQ, RNE
Carroll Cottage (formerly	6 Edward Street	Kingaroy	QHR, NTQ, RNE
Daniel Carroll's House)			
Carrollee Hotel	4 King Street	Kingaroy	NTQ, RNE
Civic Centre, Kingaroy	Glendon Street	Kingaroy	
Crawford War Memorial	215-227 Siefert Street	Crawford	
First Kingaroy Shire Council Chambers	130 Haly Street & 1 Edward Street	Kingaroy	QHR
Former Kingaroy	124 Haly Street	Kingaroy	
Electricity Building (now			
Kingaroy Historical			
Museum)			



Name	Address	Suburb	Other listings
Former Kingaroy Shire		Kingaroy	
Offices			
Former Railway Station	King Street	Kingaroy	
building, Kingaroy			
Former Union Bank	194/196 Kingaroy Street	Kingaroy	RNE
Grand Hotel, Wooroolin	4 Fredrick Street	Wooroolin	
Kingaroy Butter Factory	67 William Street	Kingaroy	QHR
Kingaroy War Memorial	233-253 Haly Street	Kingaroy	
Miller's Corner	205-219 Kingaroy Street	Kingaroy	
Peanut Silos, Kingaroy	133 Haly Street	Kingaroy	QHR
	117-131 Haly Street		
St Michael's and All	2/6 Alford Street	Kingaroy	QHR, RNE
Angels' Anglican Church			
St. Andrew's Presbyterian	48 Alford Street	Kingaroy	
Church			
St. Mary's Church	9 Albert Street	Kingaroy	
Stolzenberg Engineering	21-27 Haly Street	Kingaroy	
Works			
Taabinga Homestead	7 Old Taabinga Road	Kingaroy	QHR, NTQ, RNE
Wooroolin Memorial Hall	31 Alexander Street	Wooroolin	
Wylarah	2431 Ironpot Road	Kingaroy	QHR, NTQ, RNE

Murgon

There are two places listed on the former Murgon Shire Planning Scheme: one is included on the QHR and both are included on the RNE.

Table 3: Former Murgon Planning Scheme listings.

Name	Address	Suburb	Other listings
Murgon Town Hall Group	62-70 Lamb Street (cnr. Lamb and Gore Streets).	Murgon	QHR, RNE
National Bank, Murgon	88 Lamb Street	Murgon	RNE



<u>Nanango</u>

Forty-three places are listed on the former Nanango Shire Planning Scheme. Six of these places are included on the QHR, three on the NTQ register and four on the RNE.

Table 4: Former Nanango Planning Scheme listings.

Name	Address	Suburb	Other listings
Anglican Church	Crn Douglas & Gladys	Blackbutt	
	Streets		
Bank premises (former)	Cnr Drayton and	Nanango	
	Fitzroy Streets		
Booie Hall	1218 Booie Road	Booie	
Catholic Church	Crn James and Gladys Street	Blackbutt	
Court House	30 Henry Street	Nanango	QHR, RNE
Dwelling	55 Chester Street	Nanango	
Dwelling	29 Gipps Street	Nanango	
Dwelling (former school	97 Crows Nest Road	Blackbutt	
house)	(crn Haynes Kite Millar Road)		
Dwelling (Ogilvies old	43 Hart Street	Blackbutt	
house)			
Dwelling (Old Mill House)	70 Hart Street	Blackbutt	
	(cnr Drayton Street)		
Fitzroy Hotel	Fitzroy Street	Nanango	
Freemason's Hall	42 Gipps Street	Nanango	
Goode's Inn Monument	Nanango State School	Nanango	
Plague	grounds – Burnett Street		
Graves	At Coomba Reserve	Maidenwell	
Hotel	37 Coulson Street	Blackbutt	
	(crn Hart Street)		
Jessie's Well	Old Esk Road	Benarkin	
King's Hotel	Crn Maidenwell - Bunya	Maidenwell	
	Mountains Road and		
	Maidenwell-Cooyar Road -		
	main street		
King's House (coach stop)	Cooyar-Maidenwell Road	Maidenwell	QHR
Methodist (Uniting)	44 Gipps Street	Nanango	
Church			
Muller's Sawmill	Old Esk/Taromeo Rd	Benarkin	



Name	Address	Suburb	Other listings
Nanango Butter Factory	George Street	Nanango	QHR
(former)			
Our Lady Help of	35 Gipps Street	Nanango	RNE
Christians Church	(crn of Alfred Street)		
Pavillion at Nanango	Corner of Cairns & Drayton	Nanango	
Showgrounds	Street		
Pioneer Cemetery	Gold Street	Nanango	
Post and Telegraph office	George Street	Nanango	
(former)			
Presbyterian Church	53 Gipps Street	Nanango	
	(cnr Drayton Street)		
Railway Remnants	41 Drayton Street,	Nanango	
Railway Ticket Office	Nanango Racecourse	Nanango	
Residence	6 Fitzroy Street	Nanango	
Ringsfield Historic House	41-45 Alfred Street	Nanango	
Salvation Army Citadel	106 Drayton Street	Nanango	
(former)			
Salvation Army Hall	37 Hart Street	Blackbutt	
Seven-Mile Diggings	Old Esk North Road	Nanango	
'Shop House'	45-47 Drayton Street	Nanango	
(Mead's Corner Store)	(cnr Henry and Drayton)		
St Anne's Anglican Church	114 Burnett Street	Nanango	
St Patrick's School	18 Alfred Street	Nanango	
Taromeo Cemetery	Old Esk North Road	Taromeo	QHR, NTQ, RNE
Taromeo Station	Off D'Aguilar Highway (Taromeo Road)	Benarkin	QHR, NTQ, RNE
Tarong Homestead	2846 Kingaroy Cooyar Road	Tarong	QHR, NTQ
Uniting Church Blackbutt	Coulson Street	Blackbutt	
War Memorial Blackbutt	Coulson Street	Blackbutt	
War Memorial Maidenwell	Main Street	Maidenwell	
War Memorial Nanango	48 Drayton Street	Nanango	
	(crn of Henry Street)		



<u>Wondai</u>

Eighteen places are listed on the former Wondai Shire Planning Scheme, two of which are also included on the QHR and one on the NTQ register.

Table 5: Former Wondai Planning Scheme listings.

Name	Address	Suburb	Other listings
'The Manor' (formerly maternity hospital)	92 Mackenzie Street	Wondai	
Boisen's Store and former Slade's Store	Haly Street	Wondai	
Boondooma Homestead	Mundubbera-Durong Road	Boondooma	QHR, NTQ
Former Oddfellows Hall	Mackenzie Street	Wondai	
Former Westpac Bank Building	Haly Street	Wondai	
Hotel Cecil	Mackenzie Street	Wondai	
Marshlands Station	Hivesville Road		
McAllister Hall	Wondai Showgrounds	Wondai	
Nurse Higman's Hospital	42 Baynes Street	Wondai	
Shepherd Memorial Church of St. Peter	Wondai Road	Proston	QHR
St John Trinity Lutheran Church	Edwards Street	Wondai	
St Mary's Anglican Church	Baynes Street	Wondai	
St. John the Baptist Catholic Church	Bramston Street	Wondai	
Wondai Baptist Church	Cadell Street	Wondai	
Wondai Hotel	Haly Street	Wondai	
Wondai Masonic Lodge	Cadell Street	Wondai	
Wondai Post Office	Mackenzie Street	Wondai	
Wondai Presbyterian Church	Pring Street	Wondai	

2.1.2 Non-Statutory Registers

Register of the National Estate – archived (RNE)

There are thirteen places of non-Indigenous cultural heritage included on the RNE. All but one of these are currently included in the QHR and/or one of the former planning schemes (and as such are noted in the previous tables). The table below details the remaining place.

Table 6: Place listed on the Register of the National Estate only.

Place ID#	Name	Address	Suburb		
17424	Kingaroy General Hospital	152-176 Youngman Street	Kingaroy		



National Trust Queensland (NTQ) Register

All eight places of non-Indigenous cultural heritage included on the NTQ Register are currently included in the QHR and/or one of the former planning schemes (and as such are noted in the previous tables).

2.2 Previous Studies

There is a number of thematic histories, previous heritage studies, research material and general histories prepared for the South Burnett region. This chapter briefly examines these in order to provide a context for the preparation of the long list and selection of places for the short list.

2.2.1 Thematic Histories

The Department of Environment and Heritage Protection (EHP) has prepared a thematic history for the Wide Bay and Burnett region, as well as individual thematic histories for key industries. Therefore, a thematic history did not need to be prepared for the current study.

The key historic themes identified for the Wide Bay Burnett are:

- Exploring, surveying and mapping the land.
- Utilising and transforming the land.
- Working.
- Moving goods and people.
- Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
- Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings.
- Maintaining order.

The thematic history is then broken up into former local government areas – the study was published in 2008 on the eve of Council amalgamations. The table on the following page summarises the key themes and subthemes for the former areas. It includes references to key historic activities and places highlighted in the contextual histories.

The thematic histories for industries includes the following:

- Agriculture.
- Pastoralism.
- Timber.
- Maize.
- Peanuts.

These histories apply to the entire Wide Bay and Burnett region. However, the processes were broadly similar across the region and apply to specific places in the South Burnett region.

In general, the thematic histories of key industries provided a finer level of detail that assisted in the assessment of significance of places in the short list.



Table 7: Historic themes and subthemes associated with key activities and places.

LGA	Theme	Subtheme (if used)	Key activities/places				
Kingaroy	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land	Pastoral	Taabinga Station settled as sheep station by Haly Brothers in 1842, and Burrandowan Station settled by Henry Stuart Russel in 1843, both later changing to cattle. Most early stations resumed and sold off between 1880s and 1890s, including Taabinga, Nanango, Burrandowan and Barrambah. 1917 land allocated for the Soldiers Settlement Scheme.				
		Agricultural activities	Land selection and clearing from the late 1880s including for grazing.				
		Agricultural activities					
			Crops included maize, pumpkins and later peanuts (1919) and navy beans (1940).				
			Farmers also raised pigs.				
		Exploiting natural resources – timber	Timbergetting and sawmilling flourished after the arrival of the railway in the early 1900s.				
			Timber industry remained important to Kingaroy's economy with six sawmills operating in the shire after World War Two.				
	Developing secondary and tertiary industries	Developing manufacturing capacities	1906 Kingaroy Butter Factory opened as branch of the Maryborough Cooperative Dairy Association.				
			Bacon factory opened about the same time in Kingaroy.				
			A cheese factory was established in Booie in 1898 after a slow start to the town with blocks on sale from 1882.				
	Moving goods, people and information	Using rail	Railway terminus of the Kilkivan branch line near corner of the Kingaroy Paddock selection in 1904 led to establishment of Kingaroy.				
			The arrival of the railway led to increased development of earlier towns and settlements e.g. Wooroolin and Goodger, and also to the establishment of new towns.				



LGA	Theme	Subtheme (if used)	Key activities/places
Kingaroy (cont.)	Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings	N/A	Towns developing slowly despite the Community Holdings scheme, which offered town blocks to selectors of agricultural blocks at no extra cost.
			Taabinga Village was the first gazetted town reserve in 1887. The school opened in 1897 and the first hotel in 1899. Taabinga Village included two hotels, stores and shops as well as a sawmill in 1907.
			The first State primary school in the Kingaroy area was opened in 1891 in Coolabunia, established in 1883. By 1899 the town included a church, stores, blacksmiths, bank and hall.
			Wooroolin, established 1898, flourished after the arrival of the railway in Wondai in 1903.
			Development of Goodger, established 1892, increased after the opening of the Tarong railway line, a school opened in 1915 followed by a store in 1919.
			Construction of wells in 1906 supported settlement at Edenvale, first settled in 1900.
			Later settlements include Kunioon (1902), Crawford (1910) and Memerambi (1908).
			Daniel Carroll selected 160acre block next to Kingaroy Paddock in 1891, adding a hut and horse yard and later a cottage.
			In 1904, Carroll and Arthur Youngman, owner of Kingaroy Paddock, auctioned off town blocks. The only buildings in town at the time were Carroll's cottage and hotel, the Carrollee, and FC Petersen's store.
			The establishment of the Kingaroy railhead in 1904 led to the development of a vibrant town with shops, hotels, service and manufacturing industries as well as public buildings, churches and schools and established Kingaroy as the regional centre of the area.
			A number of buildings in Kingaroy were destroyed by several fires between 1910 and 1935.



LGA	Theme	Subtheme (if used)	Key activities/places
Kingaroy (cont.)	Maintaining order	N/A	Kingaroy Shire was established in 1912, the area being excised from Wambo, Nanango and Weinholt Shires, later taking in areas from the Wondai and Wambo Shires. First election was held 12 May 1912. First Council Chambers built in 1913, new chambers and offices opened in 1979. Kingaroy Town Hall opened 2 March 1963.
Murgon	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land	Pastoral	John Stephen Ferriter and Edmund Uhr settled Barambah station in c1843, changing cattle by 1875.
			Resumptions began in 1877, later resumption around 1900 created Barambah Aboriginal Reserve.
			Barambah homestead constructed on reduced property in 1905.
			George W Nutt selected three blocks in Murgon township area after second resumption in 1902, calling the property Castra.
			Third subdivision of 9000 acres for sale in December 1913.
		Agricultural activities	Main crops were maize and pumpkins.
			Pig farming and also some cattle industry.
			Dairy became important farming activity after the arrival of the railway in 1903.
		Exploiting natural resources – timber	Timber important in the early days of area during clearing of the scrub.
			Fourteen sawmills operating in the area over time, including Robert Nutt's Sawmill (1911-44), Murgon Sawmilling Company (1913-35) and Edward Thompson's Sawmill (1910-35).



LGA	Theme	Subtheme (if used)	Key activities/places
Murgon	Developing secondary and	Developing manufacturing capacities	South Burnett Co-Operative Dairy Association was established 10 March 1913.
(cont.)	tertiary industries		The Tiaro Co-operative Dairy Company factory was shifted to Murgon and opened in September 1913. A railway siding to the factory was built in 1914.
			A new butter factory opened in 1928.
			Proston branch of the South Burnett Co-Operative Dairy Association operated from 1935 until 1970s.
			Establishment of the South Burnett Meat Works at Pratt's paddock in 1962.
			Later industries established in the Murgon region include tanning business (1989) and wine production (1995).
	Moving goods, people and information	Using rail	Murgon became important railway junction when the railway from Goomeri opened on 14 September 1903, connecting Murgon and Wondai. Two branch lines follow; Murgon to Proston, opened February 1923 and Barlil to Windera, opened March 1925.
			Trains carried goods, including pigs and cream, as well as passengers.
			Murgon also acted as depot for train crews.
			A railmotor service from Gympie to Proston via Murgon operated from 1938 to 1943.
	Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings	N/A	Murgon township developed quickly from 1902 in the wake of the arrival of the railway with the establishment of shops, hotels, a church and hall in the first ten years.
			First school opened in February 1908 and the School of Arts building followed in August 1913.
			A number of fires from 1913 to 1928 destroyed several buildings in town.
			The Maternity Hospital is built in 1950s.
	Maintaining order	N/A	Shire of Murgon established 16 January 1914, excising areas of Weinholt and Kilkivan Shires.
			Murgon township established as the centre of Murgon Shire.



LGA	Theme	Subtheme (if used)	Key activities/places					
Nanango	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land	Pastoral	First sheep stations were Taromeo, Nanango and Tarong in 1842, changing later to cattle.					
		Exploiting natural resources – mining	Alluvial gold discovery near Nanango in the 1880s, the Scrub Paddock Diggings being the most successful deposit. Mining died down by 1890 with most deposits exhausted by that time.					
			Mining of a various metals including gold, silver, lead, copper and bismuth i small quantities commenced in 20th century, but was short lived.					
		Exploiting natural resources – timber	Timbergetting and sawmilling started as early as 1870s, but flourished after the turn of the century.					
			John Heiner established a sawmill in Nanango in 1901, followed by GA Watt, opening the Timber Corporation Mill in 1908 and further mills opening in 1912 and later.					
			Timbergetting, carting and sawmilling main industry in Blackbutt-Benarkin region with several mills in operation in the 20th century.					
			Sawmills include Andersen's mill in Blackbutt, Raymond's at Taromeo and Muller's mill at Nukku,					
	Exploiting, utilising and	Agricultural activities	Blackbutt and Benarkin areas opened up for selection in 1880s.					
	transforming the land		Maize first major crop. Dairying then became prominent.					
	Developing secondary and tertiary industries	Developing manufacturing capacities	Butter factory in Nanango in production by 1906 and extended with a second story in 1907. Destroyed by fire and rebuilt twice (1918 and 1926). Butter factory closed in 1977.					
			Nanango Cheese factory operated from 1941 to 1947.					
			Pembroke established brickworks in Nanango in 1912, supplying bricks to the wider region including for Carroll's hotel in Kingaroy.					
			Propsch brickworks in operation in the 1940s.					
	Moving goods, people and information	Using rail	Railway running from Nanango via Kingaroy and Kilkivan to Maryborough opened in 1911 and operating until 1964.					



LGA	Theme	Subtheme (if used)	Key activities/places				
Nanango		Using air transport	Aerodrome opened in Nanango in 1939.				
(cont.)	Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings		Jacob Goode opened inn at the crossing of the Ipswich and Darling Down roads leading north to Gayndah in 1849, later adding a post office and general store, laying the foundation of Nanango.				
			Court of Petty Session established in 1857.				
			Survey of Nanango occurred in 1861 and sale of Crown land in 1862, but development of township was slow until turn of the century.				
			Nanango administrative centre for the area from 1883.				
Wondai	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land	Pastoral	Early stations included Mondure (1844), Boondooma (1846) and Wigton (1850) starting as sheep runs, later changing to cattle.				
			EJ McConnell took over Boondooma in 1898 and built new homestead designed by Robin Dods in 1910. Resumption reduced property size.				
			Marshlands taken over by DJ McConnell in 1898 (also R. Dods homestead built) and managed in conjunction with Boondooma.				
		Agricultural activities	Resumption of runs for agriculture from 1901.				
			Main crops was maize and farmer also raised pigs.				
			Dairy became main activity after the arrival of the railway in 1903.				
			Cotton growing from 1924, later replaced by sorghum, peanuts and navy beans.				
		Exploiting natural resources – timber	Arrival of the railway in 1903 aided timber industry with sawmills being established from 1904.				
			Four mills operating in the Wondai area in 1920s and 30s, the industry peaked in the 1940s with ten mills in operation.				
			The Wondai sawmill is the one remaining.				



LGA	Theme	Subtheme (if used)	Key activities/places					
Wondai		Exploiting natural resources – mining	Dolomite mining near Proston.					
(cont.)			Mining and fossicking of semi-precious gemstones in a number of areas including Proston, Brigooda, Cloyna and Windera.					
		Managing water	Establishment of the Boondooma Dam in the 1980s for water supply to Tarong power station.					
	Developing secondary and tertiary industries	Developing manufacturing capacities	Butter factories established in Wondai (1931) and Proston (1934).					
		Catering for tourists	Farmstay & cellar-door tourism established in recent years.					
	Moving goods, people and information	Using rail	Rail line from Goomeri opened in 1903, aiding closer settlement and development. Establishment of Wondai intrinsically linked to railway connection to Goomeri.					
			Opening of Murgon – Proston line in 1916.					
	Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings	N/A	Wondai township established in the wake of the railway in 1902 and surveyed in 1903.					
			The town flourished with hotels, shops, blacksmith and banks.					
			Most of the business district fell victim to a fire in 1912, but was rebuilt in following years, including Wondai hospital (1915), Memorial School of Arts Hall (1923/28), town hall (1940) and Shepherd Memorial Church of St Peter.					
			Other townships include Tingoora (1907) and Proston (1910).					
	Maintaining order	N/A	Originally part of Baramba Divisional Board.					
			Wondai Farmers' Progress Association formed 1905, pushed for Wondai to become 3rd Division of Kilkivan Shire.					
			The Division then became Weinholt Shire, which included the Murgon district.					
			In 1912-14, sections of the Shire excised when Kingaroy and Murgon shires formed. Remainder later renamed Shire of Wondai.					



2.2.2 Previous Heritage Studies

The following two heritage studies were prepared for former shire areas now incorporated in the South Burnett local government area:

- Heathwood Cardillo Wilson, 1987, Survey of historic Sites Shire of Kingaroy.
- ARCHAEO, 2001, South Burnett Planning Scheme Review Cultural Heritage Study.

Other relevant studies included:

- EHP reported places.
- Queensland Department of Environment, Cultural Heritage Branch, 1998, Boondooma Homestead Conservation Management Plan.
- Bonhomme Craib & Associates, 2006, Indigenous and Non-Indigenous Cultural Heritage Assessments: Tarong Northern Land Ash Emplacement Project.

It is noted in the long list if a place was identified in one of these previous studies. The following sections provide brief summaries of the studies and their relevance to the study.

Kingaroy Shire Heritage Study

The study was undertaken by Heathwood Cardillo Wilson and completed in 1987. It consists of two parts:

- A Survey of Historic Sites
- A Survey of Historic Sites Towards A Conservation Policy

A Survey of Historic Sites

The study is based on document review, searches and consultation with local stakeholders, and provides a register of sixty eight (68) historic sites (K01 – K68). It also lists a further eighty-four (84) notable sites (K101 – K184) for the former Kingaroy Shire area. The missing numbers (69-99) was a deliberate choice by the study author (it appears that the places from 0-100 fell into the significant category, whereas places over 100 were not particularly significant: therefore, there were only 68 significant places according to the study). The register includes Indigenous and Non-indigenous (historic) sites.

A place card was produced for each historic site (0-68) providing details including:

- Name.
- Location details.
- Other listings.
- Short history and description.
- References.
- Condition analysis.
- Statement of Significance.
- Map.
- Images.

Overall, the extent of information is relatively sparse, although helpful in some cases. The notable sites are listed by name only, although some include location details and a date of construction.



A Survey of Historic Sites – Towards A Conservation Policy

This document provides general guidelines for managing places on the heritage register including the preparation of a conservation management plan.

South Burnett Planning Scheme Review – Cultural Heritage Study

Archaeo Cultural Heritage Services undertook the study in 2001 for the South Burnett Shires of Kilkivan, Kingaroy, Murgon, Nanango and Wondai to assist councils 'to address cultural heritage issues in the development of new planning instruments for these local authorities, according to the provisions of the Integrated Planning Act 1997 (IPA)'². The study includes both Indigenous and non-Indigenous (historic) cultural heritage. This review only relates to the historic cultural heritage components of the study and focusses on two chapters:

- Draft Contextual History, November 2001.
- Draft Inventory of Heritage Places, August 2001.

Draft Contextual History

The study includes a comprehensive contextual history of the region organised according to historical themes similar to the thematic histories produced by EHP (see chapter 2.2.1).

Draft Inventory of Heritage Places

The inventory is based on document review, register searches and consultation with stakeholders. A place card has been compiled for each place under the headings:

- Name.
- Category.
- Location including address, LGA and RPD details.
- Boundary.
- Other listings.
- Statement and level of significance.
- History and historic theme/s.
- Description.
- References.
- Comments.

Much of the information in the reviewed draft document is still 'to be determined' or has been taken from the QHR, RNE and NTQ databases.

Twelve places are listed for the former Murgon Shire area, one place (Murgon Fossil Site) being a place of natural heritage rather than cultural heritage, twenty-one places for the former Nanango Shire area, twenty-nine places for the former Kingaroy Shire area and twenty-four places for the former Wondai



² ARCHAEO, South Burnett Joint Local Government Planning Scheme Review – Information Paper: Cultural Heritage, no date.

Shire area. The majority of places is also listed on other registers including QHR, the various planning schemes, RNE, NTQ or identified in the Kingaroy Heritage Study.

2.2.3 Other Resources

EHP reported places

The EHP keeps a list of places that have been 'reported' in the past, often through community consultation or via previous heritage studies. The majority of the reported places list for the South Burnett region consists of places taken from the Kingaroy heritage study. However, it does include a number of places that were not found in any of the previous studies. Some of the places include a brief history (although the source of the history is not referenced).

Boondooma Homestead Conservation Management Plan

The conservation management plan provides guidance for the general maintenance and conservation of the place as well as specific recommendations for individual components. The document includes a number of plans and maps, an archaeological report and historical summary.

Indigenous and Non-Indigenous Cultural Heritage Assessments: Tarong Northern Land Ash Emplacement Project

Bonhomme Craib & Associates undertook a cultural heritage assessment in connection with proposed construction work at the Tarong power station in 2006. Four non-Indigenous sites, all relating to dairy farming, were identified during the study. The report provides location details, descriptions, significance assessment and images for each site as well as guidance for their management.

Other resources

There is a range of other useful resources identified during catalogue searches and consultation, primarily secondary sources (works of history for settlements and former shires) and historic photographs. These, in conjunction with the previous heritage studies and other resources described above, ensure that there is a wealth of historical information for the region and this should assist with the assessment of short-listed places.

2.3 Consultation

Phone consultation with key stakeholders was undertaken between the 17th of August and 8th of September 2016. The results are summarised in the table below.

An overview and background information of the study was provided at the beginning of all phone consultations, including methodology and purpose. All participants were offered the option to meet face-to-face and most regarded a further meeting as beneficial.

Table 8: Stakeholder Consultation.

Date	Stakeholder	Topics
17/8/15	Blackbutt and District Tourism and Heritage Association	Discussed places on the current long list. Noelene provided some additional places.
	Spoke with: Noelene Bird (Secretary)	The importance of sport in the region was pointed out (tennis player Roy Emerson grew up in Nukku). Noelene is happy to meet during fieldwork.



Date	Stakeholder	Topics
19/8/15	Kumbia and District Historical Society	Gayle provided some feedback on places, but wants to talk to other members at their meeting on 30th August.
		Would appreciate a meeting either before or during fieldwork.
	Spoke with:	
	Gayle Carroll (Librarian)	
19/8/15	South Burnett Genealogical and Family History Society	Glady provided information on cemeteries, churches and some schools in the region.
	Spoke with:	She grew up in Booie and has many recollections of the past of the village.
	Glady Hood (Secretary)	The society has a library and Glady is happy to help out with information if needed.
		Mentioned a few times that she gets called upon regarding heritage a lot and is a bit exhausted from it.
19/8 & 24/8/15	Murgon Dairy & Heritage Museum	Museum has three heritage buildings on site, 'Bank of NSW' (original location), 'Castra' and 'Trinity House' (relocated to site), also movable cultural heritage from the Murgon Butter Factory and Graham House.
	Spoke with: Cynthia Hatchett (Secretary)	The members discussed the study and are happy to be involved. They would like to see the buildings and movable cultural heritage currently at the museum protected.
		Cynthia provided some feedback on places on the long list and contributed some additional ones.
		Face-to-face meeting was held at the museum on 14th September. Participants were Glenda Geraghty, Richard (President) and Wanda.
18/8/15	Wondai Heritage Museum Spoke with: Liz Stewart	The museum includes the Oddfellow Hall in its original location and the relocated operating theatre from the Wondai Hospital. The collection includes artefacts, photos etc, currently a display about schools in the region is being developed.
	Liz Stewart	Areas the members collect information and artefacts from include Tingoora, Hivesville, Proston, Mondure, Murgon and Crawford.
		Discussed the long list and Liz provided feedback.
		Face-to-face meeting was held at the museum on 14th September with Anne Kinsella, Percy Iszlaub and Gloria.
18/8/15	Colin Kratzmann, Kingaroy	Colin is part of a group who has put together a manuscript of the history of businesses in Kingaroy.
		He is very knowledgeable on Booie, Kingaroy and wider region and has many photos, maps etc.
		Colin provided feedback on the long list and contributed additional places.
		Face-to-face meeting took place on the 15th September and Colin assisted further with information and fieldwork.



Date	Stakeholder	Topics
31/8/15	Percy Iszlaub, Wondai	Percy served as mayor of the former Wondai Shire Council. He has in-depth knowledge of the history of the region and was very happy to contribute to the study.
		He provided feedback to a number of places, some in great detail.
		Percy contributed new places to the 'Long List' and offered to assist with further help if needed.
		Percy took part in the face-to-face meeting at the Wondai Heritage Museum on 14th September.
21/8/15	Leo Geraghty, Murgon	Leo contributed some additional places and confirmed places already on the 'Long List' as well as providing additional information.
		He also pointed to www.murgon.net.au for images etc.
8/9/15	Nanango Historical Society	Initial contact with Mary Green, who was named as key stakeholder. Mary referred to the Nanango Historical Society.
	Spoke with: Elizabeth Caffery (Historian)	Elizabeth has researched the history of Nanango in-depth and published on the subject. She provided feedback on places on the 'Long List' as well as contributed some new places.
		Suggested that face-to-face meeting with the historic society during fieldwork would be beneficial.
15/9/15	South Burnett Regional Council -	Workshop conducted with Councillors to discuss the study.
	Councillors	Discussion primarily focused on how the study is conducted and what the implications are for owners of places.
		Some discussion about places on the existing planning schemes list and the perception that they do not demonstrate heritage value.
		Cr Green also highlighted a number of places in Nanango for further consideration (noted in the Long List).

2.4 Conclusion and Gaps

At this point in the study, the following observations were made (tense as of August 2015):

- Overall, there are currently 376 places in the long list, reflecting all of the places identified in previous studies, lists, registers, heritage studies and during fieldwork and consultation. This is not a comprehensive list, but nonetheless reflects places people believed are locally significant at some point in time. This is a good number of places.
- The thematic histories developed by EHP provide a good historical overview of the region for the purposes of the study.
- The places entered on the Queensland Heritage Register strongly reflect the pastoral and dairy history of the region.
- The places entered in the current planning schemes cover a wide range of places, but do not include an assessment of significance. They will need to be reassessed for this study, but on initial review a number of these places are likely to threshold for local heritage significance.



- The previous heritage studies provide further information on places and some location details, which assisted with the preparation of the short list. However, the information is relatively light and the place cards produced for this study will require new research and preparation of histories, current descriptions and assessments of significance.
- The EHP reported places list, in conjunction with the places listed in the planning schemes, provides a solid basis for assessment in this study.
- Consultation was positive, with some new places noted and other places flagged as potential local heritage significance confirmed.
- The short list of places for field work below strongly reflects the key historic themes for the region. It is also long, reflecting the overall strength of the long list from which it is drawn, thus making it more likely that a strong, representative local heritage register will result from the field work and significance assessment in later stages of the study.

Following from these observations, the following gaps were identified:

• Some location details in the Kingaroy study are outdated and some places have been shifted or are now longer extant.

2.5 Short List of Places

The table on the following page represents the short list of places selected for the field work component of the study. It was significantly larger than the number of places that were eventually selected for detailed assessment – this was to ensure the study had the best chance of identifying the most representative places for the recommended local heritage register.

It is important to note that at this stage the list included every place entered in the planning scheme at that time.



Table 9: The Short List of Places

#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS #	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
				, 0		,		•							
L	ВМ	Wengenville Sawmill and Township		Wengenville		Υ		635962							Exploiting, utilising ar transforming the land.
<u> </u>	К		Peace Lutheran Church Taabinga, Hall & Cemetery	Benair	8965 Bunya Highway near crossing with Strongs Road	Υ	К08	610010							Creating social ar cultural institutions.
3	К	Booie Cemetery		Booie	Coolabunia- Booie Road (Radunzs Road)	Υ	K39	610040		X					Peopling places.
1	К	Air Force Gunnery Range (Wyuna)		Brigadoon LOCATION TO BE CONFIRMED	Deep Creek	Υ	K43	610043							Maintaining order.
5	К	Andersen's Tramway / Haulage System	Andersen's Tramway and Winder System	Bunya Mountains	Off Maidenwell- Bunya Mountains Road	Y		635671							Exploiting, utilising an transforming the land.
5	K	Coolabunia Reserve		Coolabunia	D'Aguilar Highway	Υ	K31	610032							Building settlement towns, cities ar dwellings.
,	К	Coolabunia State School		Coolabunia	Mary Street		K 165							Kingaroy Genealogical Society	Educating Queenslanders.
3	К	Royle Farm	Royle's Paddock Contour Banks	Coolabunia	48 Royle's Road	Υ	K32	602767							Exploiting, utilising ar transforming the land.
9	K	Crawford State School		Crawford	215-227 Siefert Street	Υ	K 124								Educating Queenslanders.
LO	K	Crawford War Memorial		Crawford	215-227 Siefert Street	Υ	K61	610057		Х					Maintaining order.
l 1	К	Mt Dangore Trigonometrical Point		Dangore	Dangore Mountain Road	Υ	K41	610041							Exploiting, utilising ar transforming the land.
12	К	Goodger Railway Station		Goodger	Kingaroy- Cooyar Rd & Haly Creek Rd	Υ	K49								Moving goods, peop and information.
13	K	Old Goodger School & Toilet Block		Goodger	Kingaroy- Cooyar Road	Υ		640940							Educating Queenslanders.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS#	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
14	К	Taabinga Homestead		Haly Creek	7 Old Taabinga Road (108 Flagstone Creek Road)	у	K07		600647	X	X	X			Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
15	K	Inverlaw Farmers Hall		Inverlaw		Υ	K 110							C Kratzmann	Creating social and cultural institutions.
16	K	Bethany		Kingaroy	218 Peterson Drive	Υ	K37	610038		x					Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
17	К	Bethany Lutheran Church		Kingaroy	83 Youngman Street	Υ	K20	610020		X					Creating social and cultural institutions.
18	K	Broadway Hotel		Kingaroy	153/155 Kingaroy Street (151?)	Υ	K 102	602117		X					Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
19	К	Burrandowan Station Homestead	Burrandowan Station	Kingaroy	Kingaroy Road / Burra Burri Road	Υ	K05		600648	X	х	X			Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
20	K	Carroll Buildings		Kingaroy	6-12 King Street			602108						C Kratzmann	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
21	К	Carroll Cottage	Carroll's Cottage, Dan Carroll's House	Kingaroy	6 Edward Street	Υ	K11		601901	x	х	X		C Kratzmann	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
22	K	Carrollee Hotel		Kingaroy	4 King Street	Υ	K23	601561		x	X	Х		C Kratzmann	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
23	K	Civic Centre, Kingaroy		Kingaroy	Glendon Street	Υ	K21	610021		X					Maintaining order.
24	К	Commercial Hotel, Kingaroy		Kingaroy	167 Haly Street		K 147	632551						C Kratzmann	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
25	K	Former Kingaroy Shire Offices		Kingaroy	Location to be confirmed					x					Maintaining order.
26	K	Freeman's		Kingaroy	King Street (next to Carroll buildings)									C Kratzmann	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
27	К	Kingaroy Elictricity Building (former -now Kingaroy Historical Museum)		Kingaroy	124 Haly Street	Υ	K18	610019		X				C Kratzmann	Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings.
28	K	Kingaroy Butter Factory (former)		Kingaroy	67 William Street	У	K27		602809	X					Developing secondary and tertiary industries.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS #	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
29	К	Kingaroy Court House (former)		Kingaroy	Kingaroy Street			602111						C Kratzmann	Maintaining order.
30	K	Kingaroy General Hospital		Kingaroy	152-176 Youngman Street	Y	K66	601570, 615306, 615308, 615309, 615310, 615311				X			Providing health & welfare services.
31	К	Kingaroy Paddock Corner		Kingaroy	Haly Street – in road reserve opp silos	Υ	К09	610011							Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
32	K	Kingaroy Peanut Silos		Kingaroy	117-131 Haly Street	Υ	K22		602764	X					Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
33	К	Kingaroy Shire Council Chambers (former)		Kingaroy	130 Haly Street 1 Edward Street	у	K19		602810	X				C Kratzmann	Maintaining order.
34	K	Kingaroy Showgrounds		Kingaroy	Avoca Street	Υ	K25	610024						C Kratzmann	Creating social and cultural institutions.
35	К	Kingaroy War Memorial	Soldiers Memorial Band Rotunda, Stone of Remembrance, Memorial Gates	Kingaroy	233-253 Haly Street	Y	K26	610025		X			X		Maintaining order.
36	К	Miller's Corner		Kingaroy	205-219 Kingaroy Street	Υ	K12	610013		х				C Kratzmann	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
37	К	Minmore Cattle		Kingaroy	Half Mile Creek (Cnr Minmore and Half Mile Creek Road?)	Υ	K42	610042						C Kratzmann	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
38	К	Railway Station building (former), Kingaroy	Railway Precinct	Kingaroy	King Street	Υ	K13	610014, 612561		х					Moving goods, people and information.
39	K	St Aubyns Hospital		Kingaroy	31 Markwell Street		K 119							C Kratzmann	Providing health & welfare services.
40	K	St Michael and All Angels Church		Kingaroy	2-6 Alford Street	у	K51		602763	X		Х			Creating social and cultural institutions.
41	K	St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church		Kingaroy	48 Alford Street	Υ	K65	602116		X				Kingaroy Genealogical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS#	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
42	K	St. Mary's Church		Kingaroy	9 Albert Street	Y	K60	602112		X					Creating social and cultural institutions.
43	К	Stolzenberg Engineering Works		Kingaroy	21-27 Haly Street	Υ	K50	642606		x					Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
44	К	Taabinga- Burrandowan Road (Reedy Creek Reserve)		Kingaroy	Burrandowan Road	Υ	K10	610012							Moving goods, people and information.
45	К	Union Bank of Australia Building (former)		Kingaroy	194-196 Kingaroy Street	Υ	K16	610017		x		Х		C Kratzmann	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
46	K	Wylarah	Wyaralong, Wylarah Homestead	Kingaroy	South Burrandowan Road (2431 Ironpot Road)	Y	K40		600646	X	x	X		Kumbia and District Historical Society	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
47	К	First Lutheran Church in the Kumbia District		Kumbia	Northern end of Kumbia-Benair Back Road	Y	K68							Kumbia and District Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
48	К	Kumbia Cemetery		Kumbia	Bunya Highway (south of Kumbia)	Υ	K02							Kumbia and District Historical Society	Peopling places.
49	K	Kumbia Church of England		Kumbia	Bell Street		K 117								Creating social and cultural institutions.
50	К	Kumbia Memorial School of Arts		Kumbia	29-31 Bell Street	Υ	K 153						x	Kumbia and District Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
51	K	Mannuem Maize Company		Kumbia	Mannuem Creek Road	Υ	K56	610053							Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
52	K	Memerambi Cemetery		Memerambi	Cnr Bunya Highway & Memerambi- Gordonbrook Road	Y	K45	610046							Peopling places.
53	K	Kurragundi Waterhole		Taabinga	Stuart River	Υ	K58	610055							Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
54	K	Taabinga Cemetery		Taabinga Village	Pioneer Avenue	Υ	K53	610050							Peopling places.



	Former						Kingaroy	EHP rep		Former			QLD		
#	Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	HS#	places #	QHR#	PS	NTQ	RNE	WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
55	К	Taabinga Village		Taabinga Village	Kingaroy- Cooyar Road	Υ	K34	610035							Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings.
56	K	Taabinga Village Dam		Taabinga Village	Kingaroy Creek	Υ	K36	610037							Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
57	K	Grain Shed Wooroolin		Wooroolin	Wooroolin Siding			642604						P Iszlaub	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
58	K	Grand Hotel, Wooroolin		Wooroolin	4 Fredrick Street Wooroolin Siding		K 112	642585		X					Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
59	K	Wooroolin Memorial Hall		Wooroolin	31 Alexander Street	Υ	K62	610058		Х					Creating social and cultural institutions.
60	M	Graham House	Methodist Hostel, former hospital, Graham House Community Centre	Murgon	21 Taylor Street	Y								L Geraghty Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	Providing health & welfare services.
61	M	Murgon Cemetery		Murgon	Cnr Murgon- Gayndah Road & Bunya Highway									Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	
62	M	Murgon Civic Centre	Murgon Town Hall Group, Murgon Public Hall, Murgon Shire Council Offices	Murgon	62-70 Lamb Street	У		642520	602812	x		X		Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	Creating social and cultural institutions.
63	M	Murgon Dairy and Heritage Museum	Includes: 'Bank of NSW', 'Castra' and 'Trinity House', the latter moved to museum's premises.	Murgon	Somerville Street									Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	Creating social and cultural institutions.
64	М	Murgon Picture Theatre	Star Cinema, Murgon Star Discounts	Murgon	42/46 Lamb St										Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
65	M	Murgon Post Office		Murgon	52 Lamb Street									L Geraghty Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	Moving goods, people and information.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS #	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
66	М	Murgon Railway Station	Murgon Men's Shed	Murgon	McAlister Street	Υ		644776						L Geraghty Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	Moving goods, people and information.
67	M	Murgon Railway Station Master's Residence		Murgon					650003*					L Geraghty Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum L Geraghty	
68	M	Murgon State School Murgon War		Murgon	91 Gore Street Cnr Lamb &	Υ			Current QHR application.					Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	Educating Queenslanders.
69	M	Murgon War Memorial		Murgon	Gore Streets	Y							X		Maintaining order.
70	M	National Australia Bank	National Bank	Murgon	88 Lamb Street	Υ		601558		X		X		Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
71	М	Royal Hotel		Murgon	72 Lamb Street									Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
72 73	M	South Burnett Co-operative Dairy Association Factory (former) Tiernans Australian Hotel	Australian Hotel Motel	Murgon	Macalister Street 65 Lamb Street	Y			602811					Muron Dairy & Heritage Museum	Developing secondary and tertiary industries. Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
74	N	Jessie's Well	note: woter	Benarkin	Old Esk Road (opp Muller's Sawmill)	Υ		642626		X				Blackbutt Heritage Association	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
75	N	Taromeo Sawmill	Muller's Sawmill	Benarkin North	Old Esk/Taromeo Rd	Υ		635396		X				Blackbutt Heritage Association	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
76	N	Anglican Church		Blackbutt	Crn Douglas & Gladys Streets	Υ				X					Creating social and cultural institutions.
77	N	Blackbutt Memorial Hall		Blackbutt	Cnr D'Aguilar Highway & Muir Street									Blackbutt	Creating social and cultural institutions.
78	N	Blackbutt Showgrounds		Blackbutt	Bowman Road									Heritage Association	Creating social and cultural institutions.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS #	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
79	N	Blackbutt War Memorial	War Memorial Blackbutt	Blackbutt	Cnr Coulson & Hart Streets	Υ				X			Х		Maintaining order.
80	N	Catholic Church	Sacred Heart Catholic Church	Blackbutt	Crn James and Gladys Street	Υ				x				Blackbutt Heritage Association	Creating social and cultural institutions.
81	N	Dwelling	Ogilvies old house	Blackbutt	43 Hart Street	N				х					Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings.
82	N	Dwelling	former school house	Blackbutt	97 Crows Nest Road, Crn of Haynes Kite Millar Road					X				Blackbutt Heritage Association	Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings.
83	N	Dwelling (Old Mill House)		Blackbutt	70 Hart Street, Corner of Drayton Street	N				х					Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings.
84	N	Hotel	Radnor Hotel	Blackbutt	37 Coulson Street, Crn Hart Street	Υ		632582		Х				Blackbutt Heritage Association	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
85	N	Uniting Church Blackbutt		Blackbutt	Coulson Street	Υ				х				Blackbutt Heritage Association	Creating social and cultural institutions.
86	N	Blackbutt – Benarkin Cemetery		Blackbutt/Benarkin	D'Aguilar Highway halfway between BB & Benarkin									BB Heritage Association	Peopling places.
87	N	Graves	Reserve 163	Maidenwell	At Coomba Reserve					X					Peopling places.
88	N	King's Boarding House (former)	King's House Coach stop	Maidenwell	Maidenwell- Cooyar Road	у			602747	X				Nanango Historical Society	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
89	N	King's Hotel		Maidenwell	Crn of Maidenwell - Bunya Mountains Road and Maidenwell- Cooyar Road	Y		632581		x				Nanango Historical Society	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
90	N	War Memorial Maidenwell	Maidenwell, Wengenville & District War Memorial	Maidenwell	Main Street	Υ				X			X		Maintaining order.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS #	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
91	N	Bank premises (former)	Bendigo Bank	Nanango	Corner of Drayton and Fotzroy Streets					x				Nanango Historical Society	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
92	N	Booie Hall		Nanango	1218 Booie Road					x				Nanango Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
93	N	Dwelling	Now Chiropractor	Nanango	55 Chester Street					X					Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings.
94	N	Dwelling		Nanango	29 Gipps Street					X					Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings.
95	N	Fitzroy Hotel		Nanango	55 Fitzroy Street					x					Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
96	N	Freemason's Hall		Nanango	42 Gipps Street			642627		х					Creating social and cultural institutions.
97	N	Goode's Inn Monument Plaque		Nanango	Nanango State Schoolgrounds - Burnett Street					x				Nanango Historical Society	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
98	N	Methodist (Uniting) Church		Nanango	44 Gipps Street					x				Nanango Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
99	N	Nanango Butter Factory Building		Nanango	George Street	у			602525	x				Nanango Historical Society	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
100	N	Nanango Cemetery		Nanango	Nanango Brooklands Road									Nanango Historical Society	Peopling places.
101	N	Nanango Court House		Nanango	30 Henry Street	у			601571	X		X		Nanango Historical Society	Maintaining order.
102	N	Nanango Visitors Information Centre		Nanango	41 Henry Street									Nanango Historical Society	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
103	N	Our Lady Help of Christians Catholic Church		Nanango	35 Gipps Street (cnr of Alfred Street)	Υ		642623		X		X		Nanango Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
104	N	Pavilion at Nanango Showgrounds		Nanango	Corner of Cairns & Drayton Street					x				Nanango Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS #	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
105	N	Pioneer Cemetery	Burnett Cemetery, Res 698	Nanango	Gold Street					x				Kingaroy Genealogical Society Nanango Historical Society	Peopling places.
106	N	Post and Telegraph office (former)		Nanango	George Street					X				Nanango Historical Society	Moving goods, people and information.
107	N	Presbyterian Church, now part of Ringsfield House	Scots Community Centre	Nanango	41-45 Alfred Street					X				Nanango Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
108	N	Railway Remnants		Nanango	41 Drayton Street					x				Nanango Historical Society	Moving goods, people and information.
109	N	Railway Ticket Office		Nanango	Nanango Racecourse					X				Nanango Historical Society	Moving goods, people and information.
110	N	Residence		Nanango	6 Fitzroy Street					x					Building settlements, towns, cities and dwellings.
111	N	Ringsfield Historic House	Ringsfield Precinct	Nanango	41-45 Alfred Street			642624		x				Nanango Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
112	N	Salvation Army Citadel (former)	Now Martial Arts building	Nanango	106 Drayton Street	Υ				х				Nanango Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
113	N	Seven-Mile Diggings	Reserve 933	Nanango	Old Esk North Road 45-47 Drayton					x				Nanango Historical Society	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
114	N	Shop House (Mead's Corner Store)	Jane Salt Video & Antique Store	Nanango	Street, (corner of Henry and Drayton)					x				Nanango Historical Society	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
115	N	St Anne's Anglican Church		Nanango	114 Burnett Street	Υ				X				Nanango Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
116	N	St Patrick's School		Nanango	18 Alfred Street					x				Nanango Historical Society	Educating Queenslanders.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS#	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
117	N	Tipperary Flat		Nanango		,		•	·					Nanango Historical Society	Creating social and cultural institutions.
118	N	War Memorial Nanango		Nanango	48 Drayton street (crn of Henry Street)					X			X	Nanango Historical Society	Maintaining order.
119	N	Coach Road	Taromeo Stone House Taromeo Homestead,	Taromeo	Get map			635474						Nanango Historical Society, Blackbutt Heritage Association	Moving goods, people and information.
120	N	Taromeo Homestead complex and cemetery	Taromeo Cemetery, Taromeo Station,	Taromeo	Off D'Aguilar Highway (Taromeo Road)	Y			601123	X	X	X		Blackbutt Heritage Association	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
121	N	Tarong Homestead		Tarong	2846 Kingaroy Cooyar Road	Υ			600759	Х	Х				Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
122	W	Boondooma Homestead	Boondooma Station Homestead	Boondooma	Mundubbera- Durong Road	Υ			600967	x	X				Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
123	W	Byee Hall		Byee										P Iszlaub	Creating social and cultural institutions.
124	W	Grain depot/silo		Byee										P Iszlaub	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
125	W	Marshlands Station		Marshlands	Hivesville- Windera Road (Mondure- Hivesville Road)			642519		X				P Iszlaub	Exploiting, utilising and transforming the land.
126	W	Mondure Anglican Church		Mondure	Kawl Kawl Road									P Iszlaub	Creating social and cultural institutions.
127	W	Mondure Hall		Mondure	McConnell Way									P Iszlaub	Creating social and cultural institutions.
128	W	Mondure Lutheran Cemetery	Mondure Lutheran Church	Mondure	Off Mondure Wheatlands Road										Peopling places.
129	W	Proston Butter Factory		Proston	Murphy's Way	Υ		642625						P Iszlaub	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS#	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
130	W	Proston Cemetery		Proston	Southern side of Proston- Boondooma Road										Peopling places.
424	14,	Proston Railway		D	D. H. Glass			643563						Die le le	
131	W	Complex Shepherd		Proston	Rodney Street Cnr Drake			612563						P Iszlaub	
132	W	Memorial Church of St Peter		Proston	Street and Wondai Road	у			602813	x					Creating social and cultural institutions.
133	w	Tingoora Cemetery		Tingoora	Tingoora Cemetery Road									Kingaroy Genealogical Society	Peopling places.
134	W	Tingoora Hotel		Tingoora	High Street									P Iszlaub	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
135	W	Tingoora Railway Bridge		Tingoora										P Iszlaub	Moving goods, people and information.
136	w	Wheatlands Cemetery	Same as Mondure Lutheran Cem?	Wheatlands										Kingaroy Genealogical Society	Peopling places.
137	W	'The Manor' (formerly maternity hospital)		Wondai	92 Mackenzie Street					X					Providing health & welfare services.
138	W	Andrew McLucas Memorial		Wondai	Cnr Haly & Scott Streets	Υ								P Iszlaub	Maintaining order.
139	W	Boisen's Store and former Slade's Store		Wondai	Haly Street					Х				P Iszlaub	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
140	W	Former Oddfellows Hall		Wondai	Mackenzie Street					x				Wondai Heritage Museum	Creating social and cultural institutions.
141	W	Former Westpac Bank Building		Wondai	Haly Street,					X					Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
142	w	Hotel Cecil		Wondai	58 Mackenzie Street					x				P Iszlaub	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
143	W	McAllister Hall		Wondai	Wondai Showgrounds					X					Creating social and cultural institutions.
144	W	Nurse Higman's hospital		Wondai	42 Baynes Street					X					Providing health & welfare services.
145	W	St John Trinity Lutheran Church		Wondai	37 Edwards Street					X					Creating social and cultural institutions.



#	Former Shire	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	History	Kingaroy HS#	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Stakeholder	Historic Theme
146	W	St Mary's Anglican Church		Wondai	32 Baynes Street					X					Creating social and cultural institutions.
147	w	St. John the Baptist Catholic Church		Wondai	16 Bramston Street					X					Creating social and cultural institutions.
148	W	Wondai Baptist Church		Wondai	50 Cadell Street					х					Creating social and cultural institutions.
149	W	Wondai Brickworks		Wondai										P Iszlaub	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
150	W	Wondai Butter Factory		Wondai				642583						P Iszlaub	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
151	W	Wondai Cemetery		Wondai	Bunya Highway										Peopling places.
152	W	Wondai Hotel		Wondai	35 Haly Street					х					Developing secondary and tertiary industries.
153	W	Wondai Masonic Lodge		Wondai	39 Cadell Street			642584		х					Creating social and cultural institutions.
154	W	Wondai Post Office		Wondai	12 Mackenzie Street			642666		х				P Iszlaub	Moving goods, people and information.
155	w	Wondai Presbyterian Church		Wondai	38 Pring Street					x				P Iszlaub	Creating social and cultural institutions.
156	W	Wondai railway complex		Wondai				644778						P Iszlaub	Moving goods, people and information.
157	W	Wondai Sawmill	Parkside Sawmill	Wondai	North Street									P Iszlaub	Developing secondary and tertiary industries.



3 Recommended List of Places

3.1 Field Survey

Field work undertaken in the week commencing the 14th of September 2015, over a period of five days. The nature of the historic development of the South Burnett meant that the majority of the field work was concentrated on the railway corridor (Murgon through to Nanango), along with Blackbutt, Maidenwell and Proston. Nonetheless, sites outside of these areas were also included where they featured in the short list. More far-flung places generally consisted of historic homesteads and these were all entered on the QHR. In order to be efficient, given the requirement to gain permission for access and substantial distance required to travel, and the current listing on the QHR, these were not generally included in the field work.

3.2 Research and Analysis

A shorter 'assessment' list was determined after the field work. This was generally determined by excluding places that were no longer extant, were in poor condition or generally did not meet basic thresholds for local heritage significance based on a site inspection. The overall number of places recommended for entry to the local heritage register had to also be capped at around 60 or so places (a feasible number that could be completed in the project scope, and excluding places already entered on the QHR), so some places were excluded that might threshold for local heritage significance, but were instead noted for assessment in future stages of work, should this occur. Nonetheless, the places selected for assessment collectively reflect the key historic themes for the South Burnett, which is ultimately the purpose of the study.

Historical research was then undertaken to prepare a history for each place (or, in some cases, to rule out a place for further assessment). The historical research relied primarily on key local history sources, references for which are included in the individual place cards for places on the recommended list of places. Website searches, including the National Library of Australia's Trove (in particular the digitised newspapers) expanded the scope of research and yielded important information for some places. Further consultation with key stakeholders was also undertaken where gaps were evident for places that were clearly of local heritage significance (based on fabric analysis), but required additional information to support the assessment of significance.

3.3 Assessment of Significance

The significance of each place was determined through the application of heritage criteria. The best-practice framework for the conservation of tangible cultural heritage in Australia is *The Burra Charter: The Australia ICOMOS Charter for Places of Cultural Significance, 2013.*

According to the Burra Charter, a place is considered significant if it possesses aesthetic, historic, scientific or social value for past, present or future generations (Article 1.2). These values are reflected in established heritage criteria that are used by all heritage agencies and statutory heritage Acts in Australia. The criteria used to assess the significance of places recommended for entry to the local heritage register are drawn from the *Queensland Heritage Act 1992*:

- a. The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the region's history.
- b. The place demonstrates rare, uncommon or endangered aspects of the region's cultural heritage.
- c. The place has potential to yield information that will contribute to an understanding of the region's history.
- d. The place is important in demonstrating the principal characteristics of a particular class of cultural places important to the region.



- e. The place is important to the region because of its aesthetic significance.
- f. The place is important in demonstrating a high degree of creative or technical achievement at a particular period for the region.
- g. The place has a strong or special association with a particular community or cultural group for social, cultural or spiritual reasons important to the region.
- h. The place has a special association with the life or work of a particular person, group or organisation of importance in the region's history.

Each place is unique and only the relevant criteria are used to generate a statement of significance for a place.

3.4 Recommended Places

The following table presents the recommended list of places that should be added to the local heritage register. The list consists of seventy-eight (78) places and is represented by individual place cards (separate to this report). These places are designated as 'Stage 1' in the Long List attached to the end of this report.

Table 10: Recommended list of places.

#	Name	Address	Suburb
1	Andersen's Tramway	Off Maidenwell - Bunya Mountains Road	Bunya Mountains
2	Bethany	218 Peterson Drive	Coolabunia
3	Blackbutt War Memorial	Intersection of Coulson and Hart Streets	Blackbutt
4	Booie Cemetery	Radunzs Road	Booie
5	Boondooma Homestead	Mundubbera-Durong Road	Wondai
6	Burrandowan Station Homestead	Kingaroy Road / Burra Burri Road	Kingaroy
7	Carroll Cottage	6 Edward Street	Kingaroy
8	Carrollee Hotel	4 King Street	Kingaroy
9	Commercial Bank (former), Nanango	92 Drayton Street	Nanango
10	Commercial Bank of Australia (former), Wondai	61 Haly Street	Wondai
11	First Kingaroy Shire Council Chambers	1 Edward Street	Kingaroy
12	Fitzroy Hotel	53 Fitzroy Street	Nanango
13	Grand Hotel	2 Frederick Street	Wooroolin
14	Hivesville Hotel	20 Main Street	Hivesville
15	Hotel Cecil	52 Mackenzie Street,	Wondai
16	Inverlaw Farmers Hall	1136 Kingaroy-Burrandowan Road	Inverlaw
17	King's Boarding House (former)	Maidenwell-Cooyar Road	Maidenwell
18	Kingaroy Aerodrome	Warren Truss Drive	Taabinga
19	Kingaroy Butter Factory (former)	67 William Street	Kingaroy
20	Kingaroy Heritage Precinct	Haly Street, Edward Street, King Street	Kingaroy



#	Name	Address	Suburb
21	Kingaroy Memorial Park	Burnett, William, Alford and Haly Streets	Kingaroy
22	Kingaroy Peanut Silos	117-131 Haly Street	Kingaroy
23	Kingaroy Railway Precinct	Corner of Haly and King Streets	Kingaroy
24	Kingaroy Shire Council Chambers (former)	130 Haly Street	Kingaroy
25	Kingaroy Showgrounds	Youngman Street	Kingaroy
26	Kings Hotel (former)	18 Main Street	Maidenwell
27	Kumbia Memorial School of Arts Hall	29-31 Bell Street	Kumbia
28	Marshlands Homestead	Mondure-Marshlands Road	Marshlands
29	Mead Corner Store (former)	45 Drayton Street	Nanango
30	Memerambi Cemetery	Memerambi Cemetery Road	Memerambi
31		205-219 Kingaroy Street	
	Millers Corner	(Corner of Haly and Kingaroy Streets)	Kingaroy
32	Murgon Civic Centre	62-70 Lamb Street	Murgon
33	Murgon Queensland National Bank (former)	88 Lamb Street	Murgon
34	Murgon Railway Complex and Corridor	Macalister Street	Murgon
35	Murgon Star Picture Theatre (former)	46 Lamb Street	Murgon
36	Murgon State School	91 Gore Street	Murgon
37	Murgon Universal Providers (former)	66-84 Macalister Street	Murgon
38	Murgon War Memorial and QEII Park	Intersection Lamb and Gore Streets	Murgon
39	Nanango Butter Factory Building	George Street	Nanango
40	Nanango Cemetery	53 Appin Street West	Nanango
41	Nanango Court House	30 Henry Street	Nanango
42	Nanango Race Club	Racecourse Road	Nanango
43	Nanango Railway Complex	Railway Lane	Nanango
44	Nanango Showgrounds	129 Drayton Street	Nanango
45	Nanango War Memorial	Corner of Drayton and Fitzroy Streets	Nanango
46	Our Lady Help of Christians Catholic Church	Corner of Alfred Street and Gipps Street	Nanango
47	Pioneer Cemetery	Off Hospital Terrace	Nanango
48	Proston Butter Factory	Murphey's Way	Proston
49	Proston Railway Complex	Rodney Street	Proston
50	Queensland Dairy and Heritage Museum, Murgon	2 Sommerville Street	Murgon
51	Radnor Hotel	Coulson Street	Blackbutt
52	Reedy Creek Reserve	Taabinga - Burrandowan Road	Mannuem



#	Name	Address	Suburb
53	Ringsfield Historic House Complex	41/45 Alfred Street	Nanango
54	Royal Hotel Murgon	Lamb Street	Murgon
55	Seven Mile Diggings	Old Esk Road	Nanango
56	Shepherd Memorial Church of St Peter	Cnr Drake Street and Wondai Road	Proston
57	South Burnett Co-operative Dairy Association Factory (former)	Macalister Street	Murgon
58	St Faith's Anglican Church & Cemetery	Kawl Kawl Road	Mondure
59	St Michael and All Angels Church	2-6 Alford Street	Kingaroy
60	St Paul's Lutheran Church site, Cemetery and Hall	Bunya Highway	Benair
61	Taabinga Cemetery	Pioneer Road	Taabinga
62	Taabinga Homestead	7 Old Taabinga Road	Kingaroy
63	Taromeo Homestead complex and cemetery	Off D'Aguilar Highway / Taromeo Road	Benarkin
64	Tarong Homestead	Cooyar Road	Tarong
65	Teamsters' Park and Old Esk Road	Old Esk Road	Taromeo
66	Tiernan's Australian Hotel Murgon	Lamb Street	Murgon
67	Tingoora Hotel	35 High Street	Tingoora
68	Trinity Evangelical Congregation Church site and Cemetery	Dicks Road	Kumbia
69	Union Bank of Australia (former)	194 Kingaroy Street	Kingaroy
70	Wengenville Township and Sawmill site	Maidenwell-Bunya Mountains Road	Wengenville
71	Wondai Civic Precinct	Corner of Haly and Scott Streets	Wondai
72	Wondai Hotel	35 Haly Street	Wondai
73	Wondai Masonic Lodge	39 Cadell Street	Wondai
74	Wondai Memorial Town Hall and Civic Centre (former)	Corner Mackenzie, Scott and Haly Streets	Wondai
75	Wondai Post Office	12 Mackenzie Street	Wondai
76	Wondai Railway Complex	Haly, Scott and Mackenzie Streets	Wondai
77	Wooroolin Memorial Hall	31 Alexander Street	Wooroolin
78	Wylarah	South Burrandowan Road	Kingaroy

3.5 Further Stages of Work

Given the limits of the study, there is an opportunity to undertake further stages of work to add to the register and the extent to which it represents the history of the South Burnett region. These places are referred to as 'Stage 2' in the Long List in the appendix attached to the end of this report.

The Stage 2 places were selected because they were noted in key documents or via consultation, but due to the constraints noted above and the importance place on preparing a representative local heritage register, were excluded from assessment in Stage 1. Thus Stage 2 places were included if:



- Were included in the current planning scheme (at the time of the study).
- Were noted in a previous study.
- Were noted in consultation.

Places that were included in the planning scheme at the time of the study should, ideally, remain listed until such time as the second stage of the study can be undertaken.

The Long List also includes places designated as 'Stage 3'. These places appeared on the EHP Reported Places List, but were not mentioned in consultation or included in any previous studies. They might be considered in further stages of work, particularly if new information is received that indicates they may meet the threshold for local heritage significance, but at this stage there is no compelling reason to prioritise them for further study.



4 Recommendations

The place cards prepared for this study are intended to provide a representative list of places that reflect the important historic themes of the South Burnett. This report provides an overview of the process that led to the selection of the places and, importantly, key recommendations for the implementation of the study and the ongoing maintenance of the local heritage register.

The following recommendations are offered to assist with the development and management of the local heritage register.

Converge recommends that the South Burnett Regional Council:

- Accepts the recommended list of places presented in this study (Section 3.4).
- Proceeds with the notification of the recommended list of places as part of the new planning scheme.
- Enters the places following consultation and subject to consideration of submissions into the local heritage register in the new planning scheme.
- If feasible, retain those places already entered in the current planning schemes as local heritage
 places, but not included in the current recommended list of places, in the new planning scheme to
 ensure a measure of regulatory protection, subject to further review and investigation in a second
 stage of the heritage study.
- Appoints a local heritage officer that can manage the register internally and any enquiries related
 to it. As the number of places is relatively compact, it would be envisioned that this role is part of
 the officer's wider duties.
- Maintains a webpage on Council's website where all of the place cards are available for viewing by the public.
- Develops a heritage strategy that, amongst other things, establishes a timetable for periodic updates, further stages of work and incentive opportunities for owners of local heritage places.
- Implements incentives for owners of local heritage places as identified in the strategy.
- Prepares conservation management plans for places recommended for entry to the register (in particular those entered on the Queensland Heritage Register), and owned and/or managed by Council.
- Implements the heritage tourism strategy prepared in tandem with the study to further develop economic and tourism outcomes for the region and promote the heritage register.



Appendix - The Long List

Table 11: Long list. Note initials in 'Historic Society / Stakeholder' column should be cross-referenced with the consultation table in this report.

Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
	St Paul's Lutheran Church & Cemetery	Peace Lutheran Church Taabinga, Hall & Cemetery	Benair	8965 Bunya Highway near crossing with Strong Street		Y	K08		610010							Recommended local heritage register
	Teamster's Park and Old Esk Road	Jesse's Well	Benarkin	Old Esk Road (opp Muller's Sawmill)	Road Res	Y			642626		ΧN				BB Heritage Association	Recommended local heritage register
	Blackbutt War Memorial	War Memorial Blackbutt	Blackbutt	Cnr Coulson & Hart Streets (D'Aguilar Highway)		Υ					XN			X		Recommended local heritage register
	Radnor Hotel		Blackbutt	37 Coulson Street, Crn Hart Street	L42/RP3 2376	Υ			632582		XN				BB Heritage Association	Recommended local heritage register
	Booie Cemetery		Booie	Coolabunia-Booie Road (Radunzs Road)	L117/C82 78	Υ	K39	X	610040		ХК					Recommended local heritage register
	Boondooma Homestead	Boondooma Station Homestead	Boondooma	Mundubbera-Durong Road	L1/SP106 937	Υ		X		600967	XW	X				Recommended local heritage register
	Andersen's Tramway / Haulage System	Andersen's Tramway and Winder System	Bunya Mountains	Off Maidenwell- Bunya Mountains Road?		Y			635671							Recommended local heritage register
	Tarong Homestead		Cooyar Road							600759						Recommended local heritage register
	Taabinga Homestead		Haly Creek	7 Old Taabinga Road (108 Flagstone Creek Road)	L2/RP20 8277	У	K07	X		600647	ХК	X	X			Recommended local heritage register
	Hivesville Hotel		Hivesville	Main Street												Recommended local heritage register
	Inverlaw Farmers Hall		Inverlaw			Υ	K 110								CK	Recommended local heritage register
	Bethany		Kingaroy	218 Peterson Drive	L54/FTZ3 7384	Y	K37	X	610038		X K					Recommended local heritage register



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
1	Burrandowan Station Homestead	Burrandowan Station	Kingaroy	Kingaroy Road / Burra Burri Road	L1/ 209965	Y	K05	X		600648	ХК	X	X			Recommended local heritage register
1	Carroll Buildings		Kingaroy	6-12 King Street					602108						СК	Recommended local heritage register
																Part of Kingaroy Heritage Precinct place card
1	Carroll Cottage	Carroll's Cottage, Dan Carroll's House	Kingaroy	6 Edward Street	L5/RP 36992	Y	K11	X		601901	ХК	X	X		CK	Recommended local heritage register
1	Carrollee Hotel	Carrollee Hotel and precinct	Kingaroy	4 King Street	L2/RP36 987	Y	K23	X	601561		ХК	X	X		CK	Recommended local heritage register
1	Electricity Board Building (former)		Kingaroy	Haly Street												Recommended local heritage register
																Part of Kingaroy Heritage Precinct place card
1	First Kingaroy Shire Council Chambers		Kingaroy	Edward Street				X			ХК					Recommended local heritage register
																Also part of Kingaroy Heritage Precinct place card
1	Freeman's		Kingaroy	King Street (next to Carroll buildings)											СК	Recommended local heritage register
																Part of Kingaroy Heritage Precinct place card
1	Kingaroy Electricity Building		Kingaroy	124 Haly Street	L6/FY122 1	Y	K18	X	610019		хк				СК	Recommended local heritage register
	(former) (now Kingaroy Historical Museum															Part of Kingaroy Heritage Precinct place card
1	Kingaroy Aerodrome	Sir Joh Bjelke – Peterson Airport	Kingaroy	Kingaroy-Cooyar Road		Y	K38	X	610039							Recommended local heritage register



Stage 1	Place Name Kingaroy Butter Factory (former)	Other Names	Town / Region Kingaroy	Street Address 67 William Street	L/P L2/RP17 2529	Hist	Kingaroy HS # K27	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR # 602809	Former PS X K	NTQ	RNE QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments Recommended local heritage register
1	Kingaroy Paddock Corner		Kingaroy	Haly Street – in road reserve opp silos		Y	K09		610011						Recommended local heritage register Part of Kingaroy
1	Kingaroy Peanut Silos		Kingaroy	117-131 Haly Street	L28/RP6	у	K22	X		602764	ХК				Heritage Precinct place card Recommended local
					8577 L3/RP79 13 L4/RP79 13 L5/RP79 13 L6/RP79 13 L7/RP79 13 L8/RP79 13 L9/RP79 13 L10/RP7 913 L11/RPF W7913 L12/RP7 913 L13/RP7 913 L13/RP7 913 L13/RP7 913 L13/RP7 913										heritage register



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
1	Kingaroy Shire Council Chambers (former)		Kingaroy	Haly Street 130 Haly Street Edward Street 1 Edward Street	L3/RP10 3849 L4/RP55 126 L2/RP10	У	K19	х		602810	XK				CK	Recommended local heritage register Also part of Kingaroy Heritage Precinct place
					3849 L1/RP10 3849											card
1	Kingaroy Showgrounds		Kingaroy	Avoca Street		Y	K25		610024						CK	Recommended local heritage register
1	Kingaroy Memorial Park	Soldiers Memorial Band Rotunda, Stone of Remembrance, Memorial Gates	Kingaroy	233-253 Haly Street	L7/P4727 7	Y	K26	X	610025		хк			X		Recommended local heritage register
1	Miller's Corner		Kingaroy	205-219 Kingaroy Street	L48/RP7 914	Y	K12	Х	610013		ХК				CK	Recommended local heritage register
1	O'Neill Square		Kingaroy	King & Haly Streets		Y	K24		610023							Recommended local heritage register Part of Kingaroy Heritage Precinct place card
	Kingaroy Railway Precinct	Railway Station building (former), Kingaroy	Kingaroy	King Street	L15/SP10 9081	Y	K13	X	610014 612561		XK					Recommended local heritage register Part of Kingaroy Railwa Precinct place card
<u> </u>	St Michael and All Angels Church		Kingaroy	2-6 Alford Street	L1/RP79 30	У	K51	X		602763	ХК		X			Recommended local heritage register
L	Reedy Creek Reserve	Taabinga- Burrandowan Road (Reedy Creek Reserve)	Kingaroy	Burrandowan Road		Y	K10		610012							Recommended local heritage register
L	Union Bank of Australia Building (former)		Kingaroy	194-196 Kingaroy Street	L45/RP1 16831	Y	K16	X	610017		ХК		X		CK	Recommended local heritage register
1	Wylarah	Wyaralong, Wylarah Homestead	Kingaroy (Kumbia)	South Burrandowan Road (2431 Ironpot Road)	L24/FT 237261	Y	K40	X		600646	ХК	X	X		KHS	Recommended local heritage register



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town /	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy	South Burnett	EHP rep	QHR#	Former	NTQ	RNE	QLD	Historic Society /	Comments
			Region		_,.		HS#	CH Study	places #		PS			WM	Stakeholder	
1	Kumbia Memorial School of Arts		Kumbia	29-31 Bell Street		Y	K 153							X		Recommended local heritage register
1	Trinity Evangelical Congregation Church site and Cemetery	First Lutheran Church in the Kumbia District	Kumbia	Northern end of Kumbia-Benair Back Road		Y	K68								KHS	Recommended local heritage register
1	King's Boarding House (former)	King's House Coach stop	Maidenwell	Maidenwell-Cooyar Road	L1/RP19 9583	У		Х		602747	XN					Recommended local heritage register
1	King's Hotel		Maidenwell	Crn of Maidenwell - Bunya Mountains Road and Maidenwell-Cooyar Road	L1/RP55 955	Y			632581		XN					Recommended local heritage register
1	Marshlands Homestead	Marshlands Station	Marshlands	Hivesville-Windera Road (Mondure-Hivesville Road)	L3/RP52 813			X	642519		XW				PI	Recommended local heritage register
1	Memerambi Cemetery		Memerambi	Cnr Bunya Highway & Memerambi- Gordonbrook Road	Res 173	Y	K45		610046							Recommended local heritage register
1	St Faith's Anglican Church and Cemetery	Mondure Anglican Church	Mondure	Kawl Kawl Road											PI	Recommended local heritage register
1	Murgon Civic Centre	Murgon Town Hall Group, Murgon Public Hall, Murgon Shire Council Offices	Murgon	62-70 Lamb Street (Cnr Lamb & Gore Streets)	L1- 2/M5512 4	У		X	642520	602812	XM		X		MDHM	Recommended local heritage register
1	Queensland Dairy and Heritage Museum	Murgon Dairy and Heritage Museum	Murgon	Somerville Street				X							MDHM	Recommended local heritage register
1	Murgon Star Picture Theatre (former)	Star Cinema, Former Star Theatre, Murgon Star Discounts	Murgon					X								Recommended local heritage register
1	Murgon Railway Complex and Corridor	Murgon Railway Station	Murgon			Y		X	644776						LG MDHM	Recommended local heritage register
																Part of Murgon Railway Complex and Corridor place card



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
1	Murgon Railway Station Master's Residence		Murgon												LG MDHM	Recommended local heritage register
																Part of Murgon Railway Complex and Corridor place card
1	Murgon State School		Murgon	91 Gore Street		Y				650003					LG MDHM	Recommended local heritage register
1	Murgon War Memorial and QEII Park	Murgon War Memorial	Murgon	Cnr Lamb & Gore Streets		Υ		X						X		Recommended local heritage register
																Part of Murgon War Memorial and QEII Park
1	Murgon Queensland National Bank (former)	National Australia Bank	Murgon	88 Lamb Street	L2/RP42 24	Y		X	601558		XМ		X		MDHM	Recommended local heritage register
1	Royal Hotel Murgon		Murgon	72 Lamb Street				X							MDHM	Recommended local heritage register
1	South Burnett Co- operative Dairy Association Factory (former)		Murgon	Macalister Street		Y		X		602811						Recommended local heritage register
1	Tiernans Australian Hotel	Australian Hotel Motel	Murgon	65 Lamb Street				X							MDHM	Recommended local heritage register
1	Murgon Universal Providers (former)	Angel's Building	Murgon	66-84 Macalister Street, Murgon	1RP8551 27 (Part of)										MDHM	Recommended local heritage register
1	Commercial Bank (former), Nanango	Bank premises (former)	Nanango	Corner of Drayton and Fitzroy Streets	L1/RP51 973 & L1/RP53 898			X			XN				EC	Recommended local heritage register



³ Current QHR application.

Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
1	Fitzroy Hotel		Nanango	Fitzroy Street	L2/RP42 63 &			X			ΧN				EC	Recommended local heritage register
					L6/RP22 118											
1	Nanango Butter Factory Building		Nanango	George Street	L8/RP22 117, L3 & 6/N2342	У		X		602525	XN				EC	Recommended local heritage register
L	Nanango Cemetery		Nanango	Nanango Brooklands Road											EC	Recommended local heritage register
1	Nanango Court House		Nanango	30 Henry Street	L185/FY 1534	У		X		601571	XN		X		EC	Recommended local heritage register
1	Our Lady Help of Christians Catholic Church		Nanango	35 Gipps Street (cnr of Alfred Street)	L1/RP17 8865	Y		X	642623		XN		X		EC	Recommended local heritage register
1	Nanango Race Club		Nanango	Racecourse Road	174FY80 3924											Recommended local heritage register
1	Nanango Showgrounds	Pavilion at Nanango Showgrounds	Nanango	Corner of Cairns & Drayton Street	L198/FY1 776						XN				EC	Recommended local heritage register
1	Pioneer Cemetery	Burnett Cemetery, Reserve 698	Nanango	Gold Street	L347/FY2 445						XN				Kingaroy Genealogist Soc.	Recommended local heritage register
1	Nanango Railway Complex	Railway Remnants	Nanango	41 Drayton Street	L9/N235 8			X			XN				EC	Recommended local heritage register
																Part of Nanango Railway
1	Railway Ticket Office		Nanango	Nanango Racecourse	Part of L174/FY8 03924						XN				EC	Recommended local heritage register
																Part of Nanango Race Club place card
1	Ringsfield Historic House	Ringsfield Precinct	Nanango	41-45 Alfred Street	L7 , 8/N2316			X	642624		ΧN				EC	Recommended local heritage register
					L6/N231 6											



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
1	Seven-Mile Diggings	Reserve 933	Nanango	Old Esk North Road	L569/CS H2449						XN				EC	Recommended local heritage register
	Mead Corner Store (former)	'Shop House' (Mead's Corner Store)	Nanango	45-47 Drayton Street, (corner of Henry and Drayton)	L5/RP81 3097			X			XN				EC	Recommended local heritage register
	Nanango War Memorial		Nanango	48 Drayton street (crn of Henry Street)	L346/FY2 623			X			XN			X		Recommended local heritage register
	Proston Butter Factory		Proston	Murphy's Way		Y			642625						PI	Recommended local heritage register
	Proston Railway Complex		Proston	Rodney Street					612563						PI	Recommended local heritage register
	Shepherd Memorial Church of St Peter		Proston	Cnr Drake Street and Wondai Road	L1/P6977	У		X		602813	X W					Recommended local heritage register
	Taabinga Cemetery		Taabinga Village	Pioneer Avenue		Y	K53		610050							Recommended local heritage register
	Taromeo Homestead complex and cemetery	Taromeo Cemetery Taromeo Station, Taromeo Homestead	Taromeo	Off D'Aguilar Highway (Taromeo Road)	L5/RP15 9359 L218/C87 9	Y		X		601123	XN	X	X		BB Heritage Association	Recommended local heritage register
	Tarong Homestead		Tarong	2846 Kingaroy Cooyar Road	L1/B381 1	Y		Х		600759	XN	X				Recommended local heritage register
	Tingoora Hotel		Tingoora												PI	Recommended local heritage register
	Wengenville Sawmill and Township		Wengenville			Y			635962							Recommended local heritage register
	Commercial Bank of Australia (former), Wondai	Former Westpac Bank Building, Former Bank Building	Wondai	Haly Street,	L1/RP50 808			Х			x w					Recommended local heritage register
	Hotel Cecil		Wondai	Mackenzie Street	L3/RP17 8260			Х			X W				PI	Recommended local heritage register



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
1	Wondai Hotel	Wondai Hotel and precinct	Wondai	Haly Street	L16/RP6 086			X			X W					Recommended local heritage register
1	Wondai Masonic Lodge		Wondai	Cadell Street	L13/RP6 090			X	642584		X W					Recommended local heritage register
1	Wondai Memorial Town Hall and Civic Centre (former)		Wondai	Cnr Mackenzie & Scott Streets		Y										Recommended local heritage register
1	Wondai Post Office		Wondai	Mackenzie Street	L3/RP17 8260			X	642666		X W				PI	Recommended local heritage register
1	Wondai railway complex		Wondai						644778						PI	Recommended local heritage register
1	Grand Hotel, Wooroolin		Wooroolin	4 Fredrick Street Wooroolin Siding	L2/W602 3		K 112	X	642585		X K					Recommended local heritage register
1	Wooroolin Memorial Hall		Wooroolin	31 Alexander Street	L490/FY2 838	Υ	K62	X	610058		X K					Recommended local heritage register
2	Benarkin Store		Benarkin	Scott Street											BB Heritage Association	Stage 2
2	Railway Posts		Benarkin	Along railway line											BB Heritage Association	Stage 2
2	Well Hole		Benarkin	W outskirts of Benarkin Village in State Forest											BB Heritage Association	NB: natural well, first camp site & water supply for settlers. In state forest, hard to get to, probably overgrown.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Taromeo Sawmill	Muller's Sawmill	Benarkin North	Old Esk/Taromeo Rd	L228 & L229/SP1 36942	Y		CH Study	635396		XN				BB Heritage Association	Stage 2 The Taromeo Sawmill is located two kilometres along the Taromeo Road from its intersection with the Highway. The old sawmill buildings have been surrounded by a modern operating sawmill. The old machi The Taromeo Sawmill near Benarkin was established in 1910 by A.J. Raymond and Company and was bought as a State Sawmill in December
																1915. On 1 July 1920 the State Sawmills were transferred to the Fore Stocks, SN, 1988, Cradled in the Ranges, p75-77. NB: Muller's SM is the same as Taromeo SM
2	Anglican Church		Blackbutt	Crn Douglas & Gladys Streets	L40/RP3 2384	Y					XN					Stage 2 1966 Stocks, SN, 1988, Cradled in the Ranges, p114 NB: fairly recent building compared to other two churches
2	Blackbutt Football Grounds		Blackbutt	Greenhills Drive											BB Heritage Association	Stage 2
																NB: has long history



2	Blackbutt Memorial Hall	Blackbutt	Cnr D'Aguilar Highway & Muir		Stage 2
			Street		Blackbutt Memorial Hall honours those who served in World War One.
					The official opening of the new Memorial Hall took place on Easter Monday night in the presence of a big crowd of local residents and visitors. Owing to the inability of the State President (Mr. R. D. Huish) to attend, Mr. V. C. Andrews, Moreton District President, performed the ceremony. Mr. Andrews was introduced by Cr. T. B. Douglass, President of the local sub- branch of the R.S.S.I.L.A. Cr. Douglass stated that the total cost amounted to £900 When the project was stated the sub-branch had only £50 in the bank. Mr. Andrews said he had heard of optimists, but he considered that members of the local sub-branch were superoptimists. He congratulated the sub-branch, and had great pleasure in declaring the
					fine building open. Queensland Times (Ipswich) (Qld), 12 April 1939.
					Note: As at 17- September-2014, it is believed that the hall is going to be replaced by a supermarket. The fate of the building is unclear, and the South Burnett Regional Council will be making a decision on it.
					(http://monumentaustra lia.org.au/themes/confli



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
																ct/ww1/display/99782- blackbutt-memorial-hall-)
																Stocks, SN, 1988, Cradled in the Ranges, p25-31
2	Blackbutt Showgrounds		Blackbutt	Bowman Road											BB Heritage Association	Stage 2 NB: long history, early
																pavilions?
2	Camphor Laurel Avenue		Blackbutt													Stage 2
																Identified during fieldwork.
2	Catholic Church	Sacred Heart Catholic Church	Blackbutt	Crn James and Gladys Street	L16/RP3 2386,	Y					XN				BB Heritage Association	Stage 2
																Stocks, SN, 1988, Cradled in the Ranges, p114.
2	Dwelling	former school house	Blackbutt	97 Crows Nest Road, Crn of Haynes Kite Millar Road	L53/N25 485						XN				BB Heritage Association	Stage 2
																NB: the former original BB school.
2	Dwelling	Ogilvies old house	Blackbutt	43 Hart Street	L37/RP3 2375	N					XN					Stage 2
																Ogilvie, pioneering family in town, saw millers
																Stocks, SN, 1988, Cradled in the Ranges, p4, 77
2	Dwelling (Old Mill House)		Blackbutt	70 Hart Street, Corner of Drayton Street	L1/RP16 0714	N					XN					Stage 2



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Uniting Church Blackbutt		Blackbutt	Coulson Street	L23/RP3 2391	Y					XN				BB Heritage Association	Stage 2
																Includes the former Presbyterian Church and Methodist Church (1912).
																Stocks, SN, 1988, Cradled in the Ranges, p113-14
2	Blackbutt – Benarkin Cemetery		Blackbutt/Be narkin	D'Aguilar Highway halfway between BB & Benarkin											BB Heritage Association	Stage 2
				& Beriarkiii												http://www.chapelhill.h omeip.net/FamilyHistory /Photos/Blackbutt_Bena rkin-Nanango/
2	Booie Road Windmill	'Kingaroy One Mile'	Booie	Kingaroy-Booie Road		Y	K15		610016							Stage 2
																CK: windmill is fallen over and blocked off by DNRM
2	Air Force Gunnery Range (Wyuna)		Brigadoon	Deep Creek		Y	K43		610043							Stage 2
			(Gordonbro ok)													Two reinforced 'pill boxes' (observer stations) remain.
2	Joe's Place - 'The Kiosk'		Bunya Mountains	Sunnyvale Road		Y			635379							Stage 2
																Joe Walker arrived on the mountains in late 1967 and rented a piece of country to grow small crops. 'He built himself a hut over at the patch of rainforest near where the shower block in the national



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Burton's Well	Burton's Well - Old Stone and Timber Sign Burtons Well Picnic Area	Bunya Mountains – Alice Creek	Off Bunya Mountains Road		Y	K59		610056 635964 635965							Stage 2 Related to 1902 drought and also camp site for the BMR construction gang (1927-1931). Now picnic area in NP.
																Well has been protected by a grate. Signage has been erected
																Old timber and rock sign from ca1950s
2	Grain depot / silo		Byee												PI	Stage 2
2	Charlestown Cemetery	Holbrook cemetery	Charlestown / Holbrook	Barambah Creek											C Kratzmann	Stage 2 Pointed out by C. Kratzmann.
2	Coolabunia Provisional School		Coolabunia	Coolobunia-Booie Road		Υ	K29		610030							Stage 2
																Relocated school building from 1891.
2	Coolabunia Reserve		Coolabunia	D'Aguilar Highway	Res 171	Y	K31		610032							Stage 2 Closer settlement began 1883, reserve gazetted 1904. Site contains blazed trees, gate posts & remains of sporting facilities.
2	Coolabunia State School		Coolabunia				K 165								Kingaroy Genealogist Soc	Stage 2 Est. 1863, present building 1896. (1883) Still operating.
2	Coolabunia Well		Coolabunia	D'Aguilar Highway	Res 178/179	Y	K28		610028							Stage 2 Site of former well (1884), memorial plaque close by. No evidence of well remains.
2	Hornley Rail Cutting and bridge		Coolabunia	D'Aguilar Highway		Y	K30		610031							Stage 2 1911 railway between Nanango & Kingaroy with stations at Edenvale, Hornley, Coolabunia and Hodgleigh.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Royle Farm	Royle's Paddock	Coolabunia	48 Royle's Road		Υ	K32		602767							Stage 2
		Contour Banks														First developed 'contour ploughing' farming method to combat soil erosion – contour banks still visible.
2	Crawford War Memorial		Crawford	215-227 Siefert	L37/5FY5	Υ	K61	Х	610057		хк					Stage 2
				Street	68											Located at Crawford State School
2	Johansen Farm	Johnsen Farm	Crawford	Bunya Highway		Υ	K54		610051							Stage 2
																Alleged first peanut farm in the Shire prior to 1915.
2	Redman Farm		Crawford	Bunya Highway		Υ	K55		610052							Stage 2
																Early development of peanut farming & harvesting.
2	Mt Dangore		Dangore	Dangore Mountain		Υ	K41		610041							Stage 2
	Trigonometrical Point			Road												Trig Station established as 'initial point' in 1886 for surveying of the area. Timber framed beacon surrounded by ring of stones, stone cairn
	Cit CD II I II			0 51 1 61		.,	1422		640024							nearby.
2	Site of Bethany Lutheran Church		Edenvale	Cnr Edenvale Sth Road & D'Aguilar Highway		Y	K33		610034							Stage 2 Memorial stone with cross and plaque.
2	Site of FC Petersen's		Edenvale	D'Aguilar Highway &		Y	K63		610059							Stage 2
۷	Edenvale Shop		(Taabinga Village)	Usher's Road		'	ROS		010033							Site of first shop – no fabric remaining.
																No evidence of the original building remains on the site
																Matthews, T, Vol2, p669.
2	Goodger General Store		Goodger	Corner Haly Creek Road and Kingaroy- Goodger Road				X								Stage 2



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address L/	/P H	list	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Goodger School		Goodger		Y	,	K 151									Stage 2 Est. 1915, present building 1920.
																Matthews, T, Vol2, p678.
2	Hivesville Post Office & Residence		Hivesville	Main Street												Stage 2 Identified in field work
2	Inverlaw Methodist Church		Inverlaw		Y	,	K 120								CK	Stage 2 1917
																Matthews, T. Vol2, p652
																Today private home
2	Adermann residence		Kingaroy	Fisher Street	Y		K52		610049							Stage 2 Sir Charles Adermann, minister of Primary Industry, M of Hse of Reps, Dep Leader of Country Party.
																Purchased property in 1940, still occupied by Mrs Adermann (1980s).
2	Bethany Lutheran Church		Kingaroy		15/RP7 Y 24	,	K20	X	610020		ХК					Stage 2 Built 1936, manse added 1941. Former RAAF building added to site in 1947.



Stage	Place Name Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Broadway Hotel	Kingaroy	153/155 Kingaroy Street (151?)	L66/RP7 914	Y	K 102	X	602117		X K					Stage 2 Two storey hotel with pressed metal façade imitating stucco and asbestos tile roof. Façade is supported on large turned posts at street level forming verandah. First floor verandah posts tapered with Said to be part of a hote built in Taabinga (no date but early twentieth century) which was removed to Kingaroy by c. 1939 when a photograph shows the hotel in a form similar to that surviving today
2	Busy Bee Cafe	Kingaroy	Haly Street											СК	Stage 2 C1925
2	Civic Centre, Kingaroy	Kingaroy	Glendon Street	L28/RP6 8577	Y	K21	X	610021		ХК					Stage 2 Designed as part of the town planning scheme in 1940s, town hall opened in 1961. Library, council offices and chambers added to the precinct.
2	Commercial Hotel, Kingaroy	Kingaroy				K 147		632551						СК	Stage 2 License c1907
2	Kingaroy Bacon Factory	Kingaroy	Booie Barkers Creek Rd			K 104								CK	Stage 2 C1946 First established in butcher shop in King Street 1947 Slaughter yard later Bacon factory at present location Steam fired boilers were wood fired at earlier stage.
2	Kingaroy Court House (former)	Kingaroy	Kingaroy Street					602111						CK	Stage 2



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P H		Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Kingaroy General Hospital		Kingaroy	152-176 Youngman Street		Y	K66		601570 615306 615308 615309 615310 615311				X			Stage 2 First hospital 1914, 1938-39 buildings designed by Donoghue & Fulton, further extensions 1961 & 1964. Includes: Laundry (former), Hospital Nurses Quarters, Hospital Laundry & Hospital Medical Superintendent's Residence Matthews, T. Vol2, p861- 66.
2	Kingaroy Motors (former)		Kingaroy	Kingaroy Street (next to Post Office)											СК	Stage 2 One of a number of garages listed by Colin McBride, this garage had service car to Yarraman taking up to 15 people.
2	Minmore Cattle Dip		Kingaroy (app 16km SW)	Half Mile Creek (Cnr Minmore and Half Mile Creek Road?)	Y	Y	K42		610042						СК	Stage 2 Built in 1926. Slab construction with shingle roof, locally cut hardwood, hand-sawn on location. Adjoining stockyards. On Graham Wilson's property, CK has contact details.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Shepherds' Camp Burrandowan		Kingaroy	'Minmore' – Taswell Creek	Y	Y	K06		610009							Stage 2 Sheep pen, archaeological finds of early occupation dating to poss. 1840s.
																The Site is on a rise near the north branch of Taswell Creek. Evidence of a holding pen for sheep exists in the form of three corner posts and an intermediate post morticed for four cross rails and ar
2	Site of first Kingaroy Hospital	Apex Park	Kingaroy	Fisher Street		Y	K17		610018							Stage 2 All buildings have been removed, site now Apex Park including drinking fountain memorial for Matron McDiarmid.
2	Site of first public building, Kingaroy		Kingaroy	Alford & Kingaroy Streets		Y	K14		610015							Stage 2 First police station/court house. No evidence of building remains.
2	Site of the original Kingaroy Post Office		Kingaroy	Cnr Kingaroy & Alford Streets		Y	K64									Stage 2 No evidence of original building remains.
2	Sites of the former Methodist Church		Kingaroy	1st: Markwell Street 2nd: Alford Street		Y	K67		610061							Stage 2 None of the original building remains on the site.
																Present church substantial brick building with tiled roof.
2	St Aubyns Hospital		Kingaroy	Markwell Street			K 119								CK	Stage 2 Formerly Gympie prison.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	St. Andrew's Presbyterian		Kingaroy	48 Alford Street	L14/RP7 914	Y	K65	X	602116		ХК				Kingaroy Genealogist Soc	Stage 2 1908
	Church															G. wrote 75th Anniversary paper.
																Original structure moved to back of new church, former RAAF building used as hall (brought to site 1947).
2	St. Mary's Church		Kingaroy	9 Albert Street (Mary Street)	L17/RP3 6991	Y	K60	X	602112		ХК					Stage 2 See also Convent and Hall.
2	Stolzenberg Engineering		Kingaroy	21-27 Haly Street	L1/RP63	Υ	K50	X	642606		ХК					Stage 2
	Works				105											Blacksmith & wheelwright shop.
																Developed peanut threshers in 1932.
2	Tarong Corner Fence Post		Kingaroy	Stuart Range, off Kingaroy-Cooyar Rd, 9km south of Kingaroy		Y	K04									Tarong property taken up by JJ Borthwick & its establishment is taken to be late 1842. Records on the property show the birth of a foal in that year. It would appear that Borthwick worked clos The Site is located on the Stuart Range and commands extensive views to the south to the Tarong homestead area. The corner fencepost is a trimmed log with the position of branches evident
2	Dalgety Yards		Kumbia	Short Street		Y	K47		610047							Stage 2 Office and sales building of 1951 cattle sale yards remain (according to KHS no buildings on site.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P I		Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Kumbia Cemetery		Kumbia	Bunya Highway (south of Kumbia)	١	Y	K02								KHS	Stage 2 Earliest headstone 1915.
																In 1906, the Crown resumed additional land from the Taabinga holding and this was opened for selection in 1907. In 1912, township allotments at Kumbia were sold and, by 1913, shops and a hotel were er
2	Kumbia Methodist Church		Kumbia	Bell Street			K 122								KHS	Stage 2 1914
2	Kumbia Police Station, Lock-up & Residence		Kumbia	Bell Street												Stage 2 Identified during fieldwork.
2	Kumbia Roman Catholic Church		Kumbia	Brook Road			K 144								KHS	Stage 2 1919
2	Kumbia Showgrounds	Kumbia Racecourse & Recreational Reserve	Kumbia				K 173								KHS	Stage 2 Includes race grounds and different sports grounds incl golf course and tennis (KHS).
2	Tyrell Farm		Kumbia (5km NW)	Mannuem Creek Road	Y	Y	K48		610048							Stage 2 First property to grow navy beans under contract for the US Forces in the Pacific in 1940.
2	Church on Pimpimbudgee Road		Maidenwell	Cnr Brooklands- Pimpimbudgee Road and Maidenwell- Bunya Mountains Road												Stage 2 Identified during fieldwork.
2	Graves	Reserve 163	Maidenwell	At Coomba Reserve	L7/FY223 9						XN					Consider planning control in future until further research undertaken to confirm graves located in this location Circa 1868



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Maidenwell Hall	Maidenwell Memorial Hall	Maidenwell	Pool Street		Y										Stage 2 Maidenwell Centenary Committee, 'In the Shade of the Bunyas', p38 & 65. 1914?
2	War Memorial Maidenwell	Maidenwell, Wengenville & District War Memorial	Maidenwell	Main Street	Road Res	Y					XN			X		Stage 2 1948 http://www.qldwarmem orials.com.au/memorial/ ?id=793 Maidenwell Centenary Committee, 'In the Shade of the Bunyas', p65-6.
2	Corner of the Broadwater Run (Nanango Station)		Memerambi	Memerambi-Barkers Creek Road		Y	К03		610007							Stage 2 Site gazetted as camping & water reserve in 1885. No trace of original boundary markers remain. Evidence exists that the Nanango Station was taken up in 1842 by W.E. Oliver. The boundaries of this property were settled by private treaty on 5th May, 1847 and the runs comprising Nanango Station we
2	Young Farm		Memerambi	Memerambi West		Y	K46		610045							Stage 2 1919, Young Bros established peanut farm and after 1921 also undertook contract deshelling of the entire peanut crop of the area.
2	Mondure Hall		Mondure	McConnell Way											PI	Stage 2 Percy thinks the hall is of great significance.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Mondure Homestead		Mondure												PI	Stage 2
																Only little evidence remains.
2	Mondure Lutheran	Mondure Lutheran	Mondure	Off Mondure												Stage 2
	Cemetery	Church		Wheatlands Road												1930-1993
																Mondure is a village 48km north of Kingaroy via Tingoora and Chelmsford. The Lutheran Church and its cemetery is accessed from the left hand side of Mondure Wheatlands Road (McConnel Way) 500m north-west of town and is approximately 150m from the road. (http://austcemindex.co m/cemetery.php?id=699)
2	Anglican Church		Murgon	Watt Street Near Showgrounds											MDHM	Stage 2
2	Graham House	Methodist Hostel,	Murgon	Taylor Street		Υ									LG	Stage 2
		former hospital, Graham House													MDHM	Currently used by Community Group.
		Community Centre														MDHM has artefacts and info on the house.
																Murphy & Easton, 'Wilderness to Wealth', p261, 269.
																http://grahamhouse.org. au/about-us/
2	Lutheran Church	St Paul's Lutheran Church precinct	Murgon	Dawn Street				X							MDHM	Stage 2



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Mitre 10 Store		Murgon												СК	Stage 2
															MDHM	C1911
																LG reckons it's been altered a lot in the past.
																MDHM: Jack Krebs was Chairman of Shire Council, carpenter, undertaker.
2	Murgon Aerodrome	Angelfield	Murgon	Aerodrome Road		Y									LG	Stage 2
															MDHM	Murphy & Easton, 'Wilderness to Wealth', p272-3.
																http://burnettflyers.org/ ?page_id=2
																The aerodrome is today located on private farmland. A bi-monthly 'Fly-in' attracts light planes.
2	Murgon Cemetery		Murgon	Cnr Murgon-Gayndah											MDHM	Stage 2
				Road & Bunya Highway												Steve Hart of the Kelly Gang is believed to be buried here (see burial register).
2	Murgon Hospital		Murgon	Nutt Street					615357						LG	Stage 2
									615358						MDHM	Includes: Main block,
									615359							nurses quarters and laundry
									615360							,
																Murphy & Easton, 'Wilderness to Wealth', p
2	Murgon Post Office		Murgon	52 Lamb Street											LG	Stage 2
															MDHM	1914



Stage	Place Name Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Settlers Bridge	Murgon	Barambah Creek		Υ			602413							Stage 2
			Ficks Crossing Road												Located at the corner of the present reserve associated with the Fick's Crossing Recreation Centre. Remnant structure, almost entirely of bolted timber, with roughly cut and substantial piles, beams a
															c.1900 or earlier. Crossing point is known to have been used as a bullock trail. Site marked by a plaque erected by a local historical group.(A good history of the area can be found in H-Gaynd/0002; w
															High local significance
2	Baptist Church (former)	Nanango	Drayton Street											EC	Stage 2
															Now a private residence.
2	Booie Hall	Nanango	1218 Booie Road	L129/SP1 15387						XN				EC	Stage 2
2	Dwelling	Nanango	55 Chester Street	7 &			X			ΧN					Stage 2
				9/RP428 3											By CG Gordon, 1902/03
2	Dwelling Now Chiropractor	Nanango	29 Gipps Street	L4/RP17 6913			X			XN					Stage 2
2	Freemason's Hall	Nanango	42 Gipps Street	L1/RP42 59			X	642627		XN					Stage 2 1902
2	Goode's Inn Monument Plaque	Nanango	Nanango State School grounds – Burnett Street	L10/N23 66						XN				EC	Stage 2 1950



Stage	Place Name Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Hotel Commercial Methodist (Uniting) Church	Nanango	69 Drayton Street 44 Gipps Street	L1/RP76 317			x	632585		XN					Stage 2 Listed by CTA in 1925 but this is probably an earlier hotel. SW Prior tendered for a brick hotel and shops in Nanango in 1940, which would be a more likely date stylistically Stage 2 1911
															Murphy & Easton, 'Wilderness to Wealth', p392-3.
2	Nanango Hospital	Nanango	Brisbane Street		Y			615361 615362 615363 615364 615365 615366 615367							Includes: Main block, store, gardener's shed, office & private block.
2	Nanango Visitors Information Centre	Nanango	41 Henry Street											EC	Stage 2 Former blacksmith shop / garage
2	Original gate at Nanango Station	Nanango	At the end of the Golf Course												Stage 2 Pointed out by Cr Barry Green.
2	Post and Telegraph office (former)	Nanango	George Street	L2/RP87 321			X			XN				EC	Stage 2 1851
2	Residence	Nanango	6 Fitzroy Street	L708/N2 31						ΧN					Stage 2 1870s
2	Salvation Army Citadel (former) Now Martial Arts building	Nanango	106 Drayton Street	L2/RP42 66	Y		X			XN					Stage 2 1912 Murphy & Easton, 'Wilderness to Wealth', p391.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	St Anne's Anglican Church		Nanango	114 Burnett Street	L228/ N231	Y		X			XN				EC	Stage 2 1878 (Present - 1908) Murphy & Easton, 'Wilderness to Wealth' p387-88.
2	St Patrick's School		Nanango	18 Alfred Street	L79/N23 1						XN				EC	Stage 2 29 April 1912
2	Taras Hall		Nanango	Drayton Street												Stage 2 Identified during fieldwork and pointed out by Cr Green.



Stage	Place Name Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Tipperary Flat	Nanango	Alfred Street			HS#		places #		PS			WM	EC	Stage 2 Tipperary Flat, situated at the southern entrance to Nanango adjacent to Lions Park and the BP Service Station. In early days, Tipperary Flat was used for sports days and get-togethers with other families who lived close by and the name originated from the first settlers who came from Ireland. A walking track extends to the Tarong turnoff past 'Hannibal', the first Tarong Coal Dragline Bucket, and has become a popular pastime for residents, visitors and pets. Adjacent to Tipperary Flat is an existing stand of Bunya Trees, a special icon of the natural and cultural heritage of the
															South Burnett, which acknowledge the original inhabitants. http://www.widebaybur nett.qld.gov.au/ExploreR egion/SouthBurnett/Thi ngsToDo/SouthBurnettLi stingDetails.aspx?listing=Tipperary-Flat&id=9082565
2	Proston Cemetery	Proston	Southern side of Proston-Boondooma Road												
2	Proston War Memorial	Proston	Collingwood Street										X		2001 http://www.qldwarmem orials.com.au/memorial/ ?id=1003



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Reedy Creek Crossing		Reedy Creek			Y	K44		610044							Stage 2 Crossing constructed of large granite slabs, late 1880s?
2	Muller's Sawmill Taabinga Village		Taabinga Village	Kingaroy Creek		Y	K35		610036							Stage 2 First sawmill in the shire.
2	Taabinga Village		Taabinga Village	Kingaroy-Cooyar Road		Y	K34		610035							Stage 2 Township gazetted in 1887, Few relics remain.
2	Taabinga Village Dam		Taabinga Village	Kingaroy Creek		Y	K36		610037							Stage 2 Dam gazetted in 1901. Still in use.
2	Dwelling site		Taromeo	Near Taromeo Mill											BB Heritage Association	Stage 2 NB: descendant of Olzard, would like to protect site of former Olzard dwelling.
2	Mill houses		Taromeo	Near Taromeo Mill											BB Heritage Association	Stage 2 NB: some extant early houses associated with the mill.
2	Sandy Fire Tower	Sandy Fire Tower No.5	Taromeo (Benarkin State Forest)						635999						BB Heritage Association	Stage 2 Holzworth, P, 2006, 'Silent Sentinels', p42. 3-pole timber tower 36.8 metres high Constructed in 1979
2	Taromeo School site		Taromeo	Old Esk Road											BB Heritage Association	Stage 2 NB: historic society has put up interp sign, gate / fence posts extant.
2	Tingoora Cemetery		Tingoora	Tingoora Cemetery Road											Kingaroy Genealogist Soc	Stage 2 Inscription date from 1912
2	Tingoora Hall	Public Hall Tingoora	Tingoora	Main Street												Stage 2 1933?



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Tingoora Railway Bridge		Tingoora												PI	Stage 2 Curved railway bridge across Barambah Creek between Murgon and Wondai. Located beside the highway south of Tingoora (opp school). There was a shanti next to the site during construction (archaeol. potential). The bridge will be part of the Rail
2	Wheatlands Cemetery	Same as Mondure Lutheran Cem?	Wheatlands												Kingaroy Genealogist Soc	Trail. Stage 2
2	Windera Railway Station		Windera												PI	Stage 2
2	'The Manor' (formerly maternity hospital)		Wondai	92 Mackenzie Street	L204/FY2 879			X			XW					Stage 2



2	Andrew McLucas	Wondai	Cnr Haly & Scott	Υ		PI	Stage 2
	Memorial		Streets				Monuments Australia,
							An impressive ceremony marked the unveiling of the McLucas memorial in Wondai on Saturday afternoon last when approximately 100 citizens assembled for the occasion. In the absence of Cr. P. H. Outridge, the proceedings were presided over by Cr. Porter, who stated he had personally been associated over a period of many years with the late Cr. McLucas who had put his weight behind every movement for the advancement of the district for upwards of 30 years, and it was fitting that the district should see that his memory was fittingly commemorated. The Shire Council had sponsored the movement for its erection, and, on behalf of the council, he wished to thank all who had assisted, especially Engineers A. A. Joyce and F. Kemp, for the designing and electrical
							installation respectively. Mr. J. B. Edwards, M.L.A.
							was present to perform the ceremony, and after being introduced by Cr. Porter, expressed pleasure at being associated with the movement perpetuating the memory of the late Cr. McLucas, with whom he had personally worked in public life for many years. Mr. McLucas had been one of the pioneers of farm



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P His	t Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
															settlement in Queensland, first in Fassifern district and then at Wondai. Mr. McLucas was one whose personality enabled him to work in the interests of others and the demise of a man of such stable character was a loss to the community.
															Maryborough Chronicle, Wide Bay and Burnett Advertiser (Qld), 12 October 1935
															PI: McLucas Family arrived from Goomeri and became instrumental in the development of the region. They lived in Greenview (west of Wondai) and donated land and funds to hospital, church etc. The former church in Greenview (funded by the farmers) were later relocated to Wondai and used as the hall by the Presbyterian Church.
2	Boisen's Store and former Slade's Store		Wondai	Haly Street	L1/RP60 89		X			xw				PI	Stage 2
2	Chummies Hill		Wondai											PI	Stage 2 Pointed out by P. Iszlaub Established by Welsh immigrants waiting to settle in the Proston area.
2	Former Macfarlane's House		Wondai	Scott and McCord Street			X								Stage 2
2	Former Oddfellows Hall	Wondai Heritage Museum	Wondai	Mackenzie Street	L2/RP60 83		X			X W				Wondai Heritage Museum	Stage 2 Part of Wondai Heritage Museum.



Stage	Place Name Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Mackenzie Street Commercial Precinct	Wondai	Mackenzie Street, north-east from Scott Street corner				X								Stage 2
2	McAllister Hall	Wondai	Wondai Showgrounds	L301/FY8 09053			X			X W					Stage 2
2	McIllhatton's House (former)	Wondai	Wondai-Cushnie Road and McIllhatton Street				X								Stage 2
2	Nurse Forbes' Maternity Hospital	Wondai	Scott and Baynes Street				X								Stage 2
2	Nurse Higman's hospital	Wondai	42 Baynes Street	L3/RP60 90						x w					Stage 2
2	Old Wondai Brickworks	Wondai	Near Rifle Range											PI	Stage 2 1st brickworks; bricks made here were used in 'Hotel Cecil' and fire walls erected in town after the fire. Nothing remains according to P.
2	Second Wondai Brickworks	Wondai	Edward Street												2nd brickworks; located near Boisen's shops and BP fuel depot in Edward St (now built over).
2	Sister Kidd's Hospital buildings	Wondai	Cadell Street				Х								Stage 2
2	St John Trinity Lutheran Church	Wondai	Edwards Street	L3/W535 14			X			X W					Stage 2
2	St Mary's Anglican Church	Wondai	Baynes Street	L11/W53 58			X			X W					Stage 2
2	St. John the Baptist Catholic Church	Wondai	Bramston Street	L1/RP27 219			X			X W					Stage 2
2	Wondai Aerodrome	Wondai	Proston Rd turn-off from Bunya Highway											PI	Stage 2 First aerodrome was relocated to current location (now industrial estate). Current airport is used for training of commercial (transport) planes and also by the Oakey Army Base. The Barambah Aeroclub also uses the aerodrome.



Stage	Place Name Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
2	Wondai Baptist Church	Wondai	Cadell Street	L1/RP60 92			X			x w					Stage 2
2	Wondai Bore	Wondai	Windmill Park											PI	Stage 2 First bore, exact location unknown. Used to be fitted with windmill to pump water to surface. Seal and assoc. infrastructure have been knocked over during construction work. P wants plaque erected once exact location has been established.
2	Wondai Brickworks	Wondai												PI	Stage 2 3rd brickworks for Wondai, located just past the State School, supplied bricks to the Americans and all over Queensland. Woodfired kiln and white clay pit on site. According to P. the brickmaking industry was second only to the timber industry.
2	Wondai Butter Factory	Wondai					Х	642583						PI	Stage 2
2	Wondai Cemetery	Wondai	Bunya Highway												Stage 2 Includes War Memorial
2	Wondai Presbyterian Church	Wondai	Pring Street	L502/W5 355			X			xw				PI	Stage 2 Church hall behind it church bldg is former Greenview church, funded by local farmers for a number of denominations.
2	Wondai Sawmill Parkside Sawmill	Wondai	North Street											PI	Stage 2 Operating sawmill on site next to old sawmill (1909/10), original fabric still extant.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
	Grain Shed Wooroolin		Wooroolin	Wooroolin Siding				642604						PI	Stage 2
	Burnett Road				N			640850							Open grazed paddock.
1	Hell Hole Creek Sawmill		Ballogie		N			635006							Stumps in a clearing (approximately 30 square metres) on western side of Hellho Creek
}	Bunya Mountains		Bell	Bunya Mountains							X	Х			Natural heritage.
	National Park			Highway											Park extends to both WDRC and SBRC LGAs.
3	Benair State School Site		Benair		Y	K 158									1911
															Matthews, T. Vol2, p64
3	Benarkin State Forest Hill 60 Memorial		Benarkin	Benarkin State Forest, 10km east of Blackbutt, off the D'Aguilar Highway	Y								X	BB Heritage Association	Not of local heritage significance Holzworth, P, 2006, 'Silent Sentinels', p26- http://www.firelookoudownunder.com/Queeland/hill60.html
															http://www.qldwarmorials.com.au/memori?id=199 Memorial in form of a forestry lookout.
															Joint project of DPI & RSL, dedicated to the men who stormed Hil at Gallipoli in 1915 an returned soldiers developing QLD Hoop Pine plantations.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Wilkinson's Pine Saw Mill		Benarkin			Y			633160							There are no physical remains of the mill and the area has been rehabilitated and will stay as natural bushland
																NB: No remains.
3	Blackbutt Roll of Honour WWI & WWII		Blackbutt	D'Aguilar Highway										X		http://www.qldwarmem orials.com.au/memorial, ?id=214 Stocks, SN, 1988, Cradled in the Ranges, p23-31
3	Salvation Army Hall		Blackbutt	37 Hart Street	L34/RP3 2377	Υ					ΧN					NB: Removed to Ipswich
																1912 Stocks, SN, 1988, Cradled in the Ranges, p113
3	Googa Fire Tower site		Blackbutt South						635310							Was a four legged timber tower
3	Booie School Site		Booie				K 107									No material remains 1892
3	Boondooma Dam Construction Infrastructure		Boondooma						642646							
3	Coach Road Gate		Boondooma						633027							
3	Sawmill		Boondooma						633026							
3	Timber cutters' camp (Oaky Creek)		Boondooma						633525							The camp site is located on a track leading south from the Oaky Creek road from a junction approx. 200m east of Stumer's battery site. The distance south from this junction to the camp site is 700m an
3	Timber Grid		Boondooma						633990							
3	Boonenne Railway Station Site		Boonenne				K 132									1915
3	Boonyouin State School Site		Boonyouin				K 125									



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Boyneside State School Site		Boyneside				K 143									
3	Golden Whiptail gold mine shafts & dam		Brovinia (Boondooma ?)	Brovinia Station – Allies Creek Road		Y			633524							Outside LGA? The line of vertical mine shafts are located 12km east of Allies Creek at the terminus of a track that leaves the Oaky Creek road 200m west o the the Oaky Creek battery [BBS-6L/7]. The shafts are sit
3	Stumer's Little Oaky Creek gold mine battery		Brovinia (Boondooma ?)	Brovinia Station – Allies Creek Road		Y			633526							Outside LGA? The battery site is located 9.7km east of Allies Creek on the Oaky Creek road and 6.9km west of the Mundubbera-Durong road. The battery ruin is situated 100m on the southern side of the road approx. 5
																Battery built in 1941 to process ore from Golder Whiptail workings (see BBS-6L/5) to the south and the Welcome workings to the north. Mining occurred here between 1939 and 1942 with sporadic activity



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Angus George Mackay's Grave		Bunya Mountains			Y			635672							Concrete grave of Angus George Mackay 1896- 1930. A rail has been placed around the grave by the Bunya Mountains Natural History Association
																Angus 'George' Mackay was born in Dalby. He grew up on a property his parents managed which had views of the Bunyas. He left home at 24 and headed north to cut sugarcane. 'He worked at that time on th
3	Bridge - West Barker LA		Bunya Mountains						635985							Old bridge crossing Barkers Creek depicting distinct layers of workmanship. It was originally a log bridge and later on stonework and concrete piping has been added
3	Bunya Mountains Aesthetic Precinct		Bunya Mountains						635476							
3	Bunya Mountains Cultural Landscape		Bunya Mountains	Sunnyvale Road		Y			635383							Mount Mowbullan Guest House: A large building south of Mount Mowbullan. Cedarvale: A slab cottage at the edge of Dandabah Picnic Grounds. Burton's
																Well: Timber slat well with remains of concrete overflow
3	Bunya Mountains Forest Station - West Barker LA		Bunya Mountains						635984							Large, complex site holding various remains of the Bunya Mountains Forest Station. It is possible the food storage area and yards, which are some 300 m from the tank are a later addition, i.e. for gra



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Cedarvale		Bunya Mountains	Sunnyvale Road		Y			635380							Log cabin with iron roof surrounded by 1950s post and rail fence. 'The oldest building on the Bunyas is also one of the newest. The slab cottagewas 100 years old when it was brought to the mountain
																Now used as a museum/visitor information centre run by the Natural History Association
3	Dennings Sawmill Site		Bunya Mountains			Y			635974							Old bore (back remains), concrete lined post holes at an angle 29cm
																In 1934 George Clapperton approached the Denning family, who had been milling in the Peron district for years, to establish a sawmill on his property. 'They set up the saw benches powering them with a
3	Little Pocket Bald		Bunya Mountains						635973							Cleared area of approximately 1 ha - naturally occuring
3	NPWS Workshop Site/Toilets		Bunya Mountains						635980							Built in 1972. The camping ground is part of a 40 acre area donated by Mr & Mrs Allan Stirling for addition to the national park. The area was donated in 1971
3	Old Walking Track to McGory Falls		Bunya Mountains						635978							Steps chiseled into rock, covered with soil. The track is no longer in use. On old concrete bridge, that was in excellent condition, has been dismanted and a timber one erected in its place. In fact,



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Paradise Falls Picnic Area		Bunya Mountains						635975							Stone barbeque with galvanised pipe for boiling the billy, timber stumps, (tool shed from Brown's Well?), old bottles, degeneration of undergrowth, track which was originally drivable is approx 500m Closed about 1960 due to difficulty in checking public activity
3	Porter's Gap		Bunya Mountains				K 168									
3	Sawmill site - West Barker LA		Bunya Mountains						635986							Remains of old sawmill and campsite: stove, car body parts, tyres, wheels, and old bottles
3	Site of old school - Stirling's property		Bunya Mountains						635679							Now used as interpretation display and storage. Timber building and iron roof
3	Survey/Date Tree (Scenic Circuit)		Bunya Mountains						635979							Tree marked with various dates
3	Toomies Waterloo		Bunya Mountains	Bunya Road			K 140									Transport site
3	Living Stump (Dandabah Picnic Ground)		Bunya Mountains - Dandabah						635977							Stump of felled bunya pine 1 m in diametre There are three known living stumps from Bunya trees felled by timber-getters 65 years ago about 762mm high and 914mm in diametre. 'Although dormant, these stumps are alive today, while all evidence o Natural?
3	Alice Creek School Site		Bunya Mountains NP - Alice Creek				K 154									1927



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Burrandowan Hall		Burrandowa n				K 174									
3	Burrandowan Racetrack		Burrandowa n				K 171									
3	Burrandowan State School Site		Burrandowa n				K 159									
3	Byee Hall		Byee												PI	In poor condition – no further assessment required.
3	Barakula DPI forest office		Chahpingah						635013							
3	Barakula Experimental Plot No. 129		Chahpingah						635009							
3	Cherbourg Hospital		Cherbourg ⁴	Barambah Ave					615301							Not in SBRC LGA
3	Hospital Doctors quarters		Cherbourg1	Barambah Ave					615302							Not in SBRC LGA
3	Hospital Main block		Cherbourg1	Barambah Ave					615304							Not in SBRC LGA
3	Hospital Staff dining room		Cherbourg1	Barambah Ave					615303							Not in SBRC LGA
3	Cloyna Hall		Cloyna	41 Cloyna Road (West)												
3	Coolabunia West State School Site		Coolabunia				K 145									1904-1936
3	Nebe Farm		Coolabunia				K 156									
3	Windmill Paddock, Royles Farm		Coolabunia	Royles Road		Y			610033							The Windmill Paddock is a fenced, grassed paddock to the corner of Peterson Drive and Royles Road, Coolabunia. Sloping down to the northeast, the paddock is ploughed and shaped in a regular rhythm of
3	Corndale Methodist Church		Corndale				K 114									C1909 Relocated from Memerambi in 1956.
3	Corndale State School Site		Corndale				K 160									

 $^{^{\}rm 4}$ Not in South Burnett Regional Council Government Area.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Crawford Methodist		Crawford				K 176									C1914
	Church Site															Building moved to Proston.
3	Crawford Presbyterian Church		Crawford				K 115									C1928
3	Crawford State School		Crawford			Υ	K 124									1911
																Matthews, T, Vol2, p666-7.
																Maybe Logboy School Building?
3	Crawford Well		Crawford		Res 323	Υ	K 105									Matthews, T, Vol2, p666.
3	Logboy State School Site		Crawford				K 134									1902-1911
																Relocated to Crawford.
3	Durong Hall		Durong	Chinchilla Highway		Υ										Matthews, T, Vol2, p572
3	Elginvale Sawmill		Elginvale via Manumbar	Manumbar Road					613962				X			Kilkivan and Nanango Shire have commenced a program intended to restore the mill to a working museum
																Not in LGA
3	Ellesmere State School Site		Ellesmere				K 150									
3	Glencliff State School Site		Glencliff				K 127									
3	Goodger Railway Station		Goodger	Kingaroy-Cooyar Rd & Haly Creek Rd		Y	K49									Moved to Kingaroy Showgrounds
																Railway opened 1915.
																Site contains cream shed, relocated station building & others.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Old Goodger School & Toilet Block	Same as 'Goodger School?	Goodger	Kingaroy-Cooyar Road		Y			640940							The school has remained unchanged since last occupied by primary students in the 1960's. Since then it has been owned and conserved by local residents who have used it for community gatherings
3	Seng's Blacksmiths Shop & Sawmill		Goodger			Υ	K 108									Matthews, T, Vol2, p678.
3	Gordonbrook South School Site		Gordonbroo k				K 155									1924-8 and 1937-45
3	Haly Creek Methodist Church		Haly Creek				K 181									1914
3	Haly Creek State School Site		Haly Creek				K 131									
3	Hillsdale School		Hillsdale			Υ	K 118									
3	Hivesville Hall		Hivesville	Main Street		Y										1924 Matthews, T. Vol2, p563- 4.
3	Picture Theatre (former)	Johnson's Pictures	Hivesville			Y			642667							Poor condition, little remaining fabric, no further assessment required. Matthews, T. Vol2, p564 Later converted into peanut processing plant
3	Home Creek Methodist		Home Creek				K 182									(now closed down).
3	Church		nome creek				V 107									C1500
3	Hornley Railway Station Site		Hornley				K 128									1911
3	Inverlaw State School Site		Inverlaw			Y	K 138									1907 provisional 1909-1968 Matthews, T. Vol2, p652
3	Ironpot Hall		Ironpot			Υ	K 172									1932 Matthews, T. Vol2, p659.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Ironpot Creek State School Site		Ironpot Creek			Υ	K 146									Matthews, T. Vol2, p659.
3	Jarail Creek State School Site		Jarail Creek			Y	K 139									Matthews, T. Vol2, p600.
3	Burnett War Memorial		Kingaroy	Geoff Rath Drive										X		At aerodrome – included in recommended heritage register under that place.
																Stone, slate and marble plinth, supporting an Honour Roll listing all squadrons and personnel stationed at the Kingaroy Wartime Royal Australian Air Force Base and a Roll of Honour of service personnel who lost their lives in the Burnett during World War II.
																http://www.qldwarmem orials.com.au/memorial/ ?id=335
3	Club Hotel, Kingaroy		Kingaroy			Y	K 130		632549							License c1907, present building c1945.
3	Dr Harbisons Surgery & Residence (former)		Kingaroy	194-196 Kingaroy Street					601569							
3	Ferguson's Sawmill Site		Kingaroy				K 163									
3	Gallagher's Sawmill Site		Kingaroy				K 149									
3	Kingaroy Hotel	Kingaroy Motel	Kingaroy	Youngman Street			K 126		632552							
3	Kingaroy Locksmith Building		Kingaroy	9 Markwell Street					642689							



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Kingaroy School of Arts		Kingaroy	Kingaroy Street	Res 192	Υ	K 113									Demolished
																1914 (1910) 1st SoA moved to Kingaroy Street (Central Café)
																2nd SoA constructed 1916, opened 1917; demolished in 1960s for park at the new court house.
																Matthews, T. Vol2, p622
3	Kingaroy State School		Kingaroy				K 123									1910
3	Majen Flats	Yeronga Fire Station (former)	Kingaroy	170 Doonkuna Street					602114							On the southeast corner of Yeronga Park, the former Yeronga Fire Station is a two-storey timber framed structure, clad with weatherboards to the lower level and battened fibro sheeting to the upper le
3	Millers Farm	Stuartvue	Kingaroy	To be determined				X	601364							
3	Original Kingaroy Post Office		Kingaroy	Kumbia Road (Kingaroy Street)		Y	K 111		610060							Relocated to Kumbia Road
3	Residence		Kingaroy	299 Haly Street												
3	Salvation Army Hall	Salvation Army Temple	Kingaroy	4 Mary Street			K 180		602109						Kingaroy Genealogist Soc	1911 Not used as SA Hall anymore.
3	Silos Booie		Kingaroy						642605							
3	St Mary's Convent School		Kingaroy	Albert Street			K 166									1929
3	St Mary's Hall		Kingaroy	Albert Street					602113							
3	TW O'Neill's farm		Kingaroy	Kingaroy-Barkers Creek Road			K 152									
3	Kumbia Church of England		Kumbia				K 117									1918 Refer K 177
																St Pauls Anglican Church relocated from Taabinga Village



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Kumbia Hotel		Kumbia	Bell Street		Υ	K 142		632553							1913 Matthews, T. Vol2, p648.
3	Kumbia Lutheran Church		Kumbia				K 169									Est. 1929, present building 1959.
3	Kumbia State School		Kumbia		Res 347		K 133									1914
3	Mannuem Maize Company		Kumbia	Mannuem Creek Road		Y	K56		610053							Corn cribs no longer extant
																1920 Matthews, T. Vol2, p649.
																Largest maize farm in Australia, several corn cribs remain.
3	Kunioon West State School Site		Kunioon			Υ	K 148									1902 Matthews, T. Vol2, p678.
3	Malar State School Site		Malar				K 129									
3	Mannuem Creek State School		Mannuem			Y	K 116									1911 (moved in 1921) Matthews, T. Vol2, p642- 3.
3	Mannuem Methodist Church		Mannuem			Y	K 141									1912 Later used as Presbyterian Church. Matthews, T. Vol2, p644
3	Mannuem Creek Landing Field		Mannuem Creek				K 167									C1939
3	Sunny View Property		Mannuem Mail Route				K 184									Home of Sunny View Little Princess the 30th.
3	Canal Creek gold diggings		Melrose						634837							Mines situated to the north of Canal Creek Road and Canal Creek. Shallow alluvial trenching in the creek banks and trenches varying in diameter from 1-2 metres. Approximately 20 depressions are visibl
3	All Saints' Church		Memerambi				K 178									1912
3	Memerambi Hall		Memerambi	Memerambi Cemetery Road			K 170									



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Old Stockyard Creek station road gate		Memerambi						634047							Stockyard Creek road is an old coach and waggon route
3	Mt Jones School Site		Mt Jones				K 157									1902-1915
3	Murgon National Service Memorial	Murgon Commemorative Corner	Murgon	Lamb Street										Х		2003 http://www.qldwarmem orials.com.au/memorial/ ?id=894
3	Murgon RSL Honour Boards		Murgon	Lamb Street										X		http://www.qldwarmem orials.com.au/memorial/ ?id=895
3	Presbyterian Church	Scots Community Centre	Nanango	53 Gipps Street (corner of Drayton Street)	L2/RP17 7409			X			XN				EC	1893 The building has been removed to the Ringsfield Precinct (EC).
3	Palace Hotel		Nanango	77 Drayton Street					632584 642669							Photograph c.1918 shows blockwork with dark quoins and jambs. Gables shingled and top verandah cantilevered. Two masonry piers at entrance. Shop front each side at ground. Possibly replaced or reworke
3	St Patricks Catholic Church		Nanango	Gipps Street					601588							



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P Hi	t Kingaro HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Timber Corporation Sawmill, Nanango		Nanango		Y			636010							The site when inspected had recently been burnt but it was obvious that basically only concrete and steel remains had marked the site for some years. A number of substantial concrete remains marked the Nanango was a timber town from its early years but had only small local markets until completion of the railway via Kilkivan in November 1911. Licences were issued for timber-cutters
3	Duncan Park		Nanango East					636007							in 1864. Murphy a Park area with fireplaces, picnic tables, amenities block. The shelter shed has been dismantled and only a concrete slab remains. Opposite the park is an area containing King Orchids Stag horns. There The garden in the park was planted by Eric Duncan, the then rangerin-charge. The numerous king orchids and stag horns were removed by forestry workers when they were planting the adjoining hoop pine
3	East Nanango Fire Tower Site		Nanango East					636006							4 pole timber tower. Only part of the timber supports remain and some concrete (slab?). There were 3 or 4 25 x 25 cm concrete slabs that were used as anchor point. It is now a trigonometric site



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	East Nanango Forestry Station and Nursery		Nanango East						636008							There are no physical remains of the camp site. Of the forestry station, the truck shed, timber supports with slab sides and corrugated iron roof still stands. The dirt loading ramp with timber poles Forestry camp closed over 50 years ago
3	Tarong Fire Tower Site		Neumgna						635170							The Tarong Fire Tower stood at the site of the present Tarong Lookout from 1940 to 1968. It was demolished when the plantation area expanded beyond detection limits There are no physical
																remains of the tower on site, but there is a sign to indicate the site
3	Redvale School site		Redvale				K 162									Building relocated from Mt Jones in 1915.
3	Reedy Creek Methodist Church		Reedy Creek				K 175									C1914
3	Reedy Creek State School Site		Reedy Creek			Y	K 135									1911 Matthews, T. Vol2, p643- 4.
3	Stuart Valley State School		Stuart Valley				K 137									
3	Kurragundi Waterhole		Taabinga	Stuart River		Υ	K58		610055							Related to 1902 drought.
3	Morrissey's Fiveways		Taabinga (9km SW)	Cnr Reedy Creek &Magees Rd and Bunya Hwy			K 161									C1900
3	Freshwater Bridge		Taabinga Village	SW of Taabinga			K 106									1911
3	Nells Country Kitchen		Taabinga Village	Kingaroy-Cooyar Road			K 101									C1896
3	St Paul's Anglican Church (Site?)		Taabinga Village				K 177									1904-18 Building relocated to Kumbia.



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Bolsar Paddock		Taromeo						635993							A cleared area with no physical remains. The site is close to the junction of Round Scrub Road and Collins Hut Road Old Frank Bolsar had a hut and yard for grazing horses at this site. He was a forestry worker
3	Granite Headstone Quarry Lease		Taromeo						635998							In Telah LA. Currently a grazing lease
3	Old Coach Road Well and		Taromeo						636002							Ceased in early 1960s Same as Jesse's Well
3	Trough Sand Mine - Blackbutt		Taromeo						636003							30 plus years of use - extensive use by Council and, once the Council had finished, locals
3	Taromeo Creek Gold Mines		Taromeo						635997							All but one of the shafts has been filled in. One has boarding intact. Tree felling across one shaft and the extraction winch has been crushed by a tree
3	Taromeo Seed Orchard		Taromeo						635208							Hoop pine seed orchard covering about 15 ha. The site was chosen for the good soil. The trees are grafted to produce seed
3	Taromeo Stone House and Coach Road		Taromeo					Х	635474						BB Heritage Association	Same as Taromeo Homestead and Jesse's Well entries
3	Barnes Property		Tarong		18FY149											Bonhomme Craib & Assoc Maybe not be extant anymore
3	Berlin Property		Tarong	Berlin Road	88FY197 1											Bonhomme Craib & Assoc
																Maybe not be extant anymore



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Bochmann Property		Tarong		3RP1686 38											Bonhomme Craib & Assoc
																Maybe not be extant anymore
3	Embrey Property		Tarong		16FY149											Bonhomme Craib & Assoc
																Maybe not be extant anymore
3	Tarong Lookout		Tarong			Y			635169							The view north east is towards the Tarong Power Station. The view north west is pine plantations. The picnic area has signage which notes this was the site of the Tarong Fire Tower from 1940 to 1968
3	Wattle Grove School Site		Wattle Grove				K 164									1916-1963
3	Wengenville Bullock Wagon		Wengenvill	le		Υ			635963							The bullock wagon is at the site of Wengenville Sawmill which was built in 1922 by Lars Anderson. The Mill was bought by H J Hyne & Sons in 1928, and operated until 1960. The wagon was used to haul ti
3	Commerical Bank (former)		Wondai						642668							



Stage	Place Name Other	r Names Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS #	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Wondai Plane Crash Memorial	Wondai	Byee Road												Monument in memory of the victims of the Wondai plane crash in 1990 and also in recognition of the community effort at the scene of the accident.
															Beech E90 VH-LFH was being flown by the owner as pilot-in-command for the flight. The pilot had submitted a flight plan nominating a private category, single pilot, instrument flight rules (IFR) flight, from Cairns to Wondai and thence to Camden. The aircraft was conducting night departure from Runway 36 at Wondai, Queensland.
															After an apparently normal take-off, it struct the ground 600 metres beyond the end of the runway in a shallow, wings level descent and at high speed. The aircraft was destroyed by impact forces and fire, and five of the six occupants on board were killed. All occupants of the aircraft had injuries consistent with high impact forces. The surviving passenger's injuries would have been fatal had it not been for the prompt arrival of medical assistance.
3	St Andrew's Church	Wooroolin				K 179									1921
3	St Patrick's Church	Wooroolin				K 183									1913
3	Wooroolin CWA	Wooroolin						642603							



Stage	Place Name	Other Names	Town / Region	Street Address	L/P	Hist	Kingaroy HS#	South Burnett CH Study	EHP rep places #	QHR#	Former PS	NTQ	RNE	QLD WM	Historic Society / Stakeholder	Comments
3	Wooroolin Presbyterian Church		Wooroolin				K 109									1909
3	Wooroolin Railway Station		Wooroolin				K 103									1904
3	Wooroolin State School		Wooroolin				K 121									1901
3	Wooroolin West State School Site		Wooroolin				K 136									
3	Wooroolin WWI and WWII Honour Boards		Wooroolin											Х		http://www.qldwarmem orials.com.au/memorial/ ?id=1367



Appendix - Response to Submissions



South Burnett Heritage Study

DRAFT Response to Submissions South Burnett Regional Council August 2016











Converge Heritage + Community

Contact details are:

Simon Gall

Converge Heritage + Community

ABN:71 366 535 889

PO Box 1974, Pialba, Queensland, 4655

Tel: (07) 4124 1938

Email: sgall@convergehc.com.au

Copyright © 2016

Document Verification	
Project	South Burnett region Heritage Study
Project Number	16004C
Document Title	16004C South Burnett Region Heritage Study_Draft response to submission_010816
File Location	SharePoint\16004C South Burnett Region Heritage Study\Reporting
Client	South Burnett Regional Council

Version history				
Revision	Date	Nature of revision	Prepared by	Authorised by
0	01/08/2016	Draft	СВ	СВ
1	07/09/216	Final	СВ	СВ
2				



Contents

1	Introduction	4
2	Response	5
3	Recommendation	11



List of Tables

Table 1: Response to individual submissions5
--



1 Introduction

1.1 Project Background

The South Burnett Regional Council (hereafter 'Council') is currently preparing a new planning scheme. As part of this process, Council required the preparation of a local heritage study and a recommended local heritage register to ensure it meets its obligations under the State Planning Policy and the *Queensland Heritage Act 1992*.

1.2 Purpose of this Report

Council proceeded with the notification of the places recommended for entry to the local heritage register. This report provides a response from Converge regarding submissions received by Council during the recent notification period.

Feedback was also received during one-on-one sessions with owners held during the notification phase. The feedback applied to only a small number of places and was primarily concerned with minor changes to the history or description of the places. As the feedback did not constitute formal submissions, it is not included in this report. Changes were made to the relevant place cards based on the feedback.

1.3 Methodology

The Queensland Heritage Act 1992 - and correspondence provided to owners and the public during notification - clearly stated that submissions must address the statement of significance for the relevant place. Consequently, Converge's response primarily addresses points raised in submissions that directly relate to the significance of each place. Other matters that are not directly related to significance are only tangentially addressed.

1.4 Study Timing

The submission period for notification closed on the 22nd of July 2016.

1.5 Personnel

The response was prepared by Dr Craig Barrett.



2 Response

Table 1: Response to individual submissions.

Place	Submission Summary	Response	Recommendations
Kingaroy Butter Factory	Listing of the place on the local heritage register will impact the ability to make necessary modifications in the future to maintain health and safety regulations.	 The place is currently entered on the Queensland Heritage Register. This listing occurred quite recently (2012). Any requirements the owner must meet as part of the Queensland heritage listing will surpass local heritage regulations. The listing of the place on the Queensland Heritage Register is a decisive statement of the significance of the place. 	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register. Offer the owner the opportunity for further discussion regarding the impact of local heritage listing.
Carrollee Hotel	 Agrees hotel is significant. Seek to amend Criterion B to explicitly refer only to the façade, as the remainder of the hotel internally has been modified over time. The owner also offered to meet with Council regarding the proposed listing, but to our knowledge this has not occurred. 	 Regarding Criterion B: The point is understood. It is clear the concern from the owner is that modern elements of the hotel are not rare because they are not original. 'Façade' generally refers to the external fabric, often facing the street. The problem with relying on the term 'façade' is that aspects of the hotel not commonly associated with that term may be deemed 'not significant' by default. Some changes over time may also be significant, despite not being original. In any case, the statement for Criterion B implies original or early fabric. The planning scheme is sufficiently flexible to ensure there is no impost on the owners in the case of redevelopment if the affected fabric is later/not significant. 	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register. Changes are not required to the statement of significance. A face-to-face meeting or phone conference (in the format of the recent one-onone sessions) should be held to help clarify the issue for the owner.
Seven Mile Diggings	 Argued gold mining did not occur anywhere on their property. 	 Agree that the documentary evidence is limited for the affected property. Accepted the information provided by the landowners. 	 Remove the affected sections from the proposed heritage boundary.



Place	Submission Summary	Response	Recommendations
Mead Corner Store (former)	Does not wish to have property entered in the register.	The submission does not address the significance of the place.	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register.
Murgon Universal Providers	 Changes have occurred to the building over time due to fire and removal/replacement of deteriorated fabric. Selling the building would be impossible if it is heritage listed. Insurance will increase. Will generally impact the economic viability of the building. 	 We acknowledge that changes have occurred over time. In terms of the physical building, the statement of significance primarily draws attention to the façade. Sections of the façade remain largely intact, with later additions constructed to match the original façade. The citation does not make any claims about the interior of the buildings or other buildings (including former structures) associated with the place. The façade, and continued presence of the building overall in its original location, reinforces the significance of retail premises on Macalister Street, which is now rare. The evidence of changes over time and the general focus of the card on the façade provide substantial flexibility for the adaptation and reuse of the site. The other issues raised in the submission do not relate to the significance of the place. 	Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register, subject to changes to the citation that clearly reflect the events and alterations that have affected the extant fabric of the building.
Numerous locations	 List of places that should be entered in to the local heritage register. Attempt made to assess according to A-H criteria. 	 Some of the places hold merit e.g. lone graves. The study had finite limits and not every place could be included. A stage 2 is recommended and a review of the suggested places could be incorporated into the stage 2 process should Council proceed in this direction. Consultation was attempted with Mrs Green during the consultation phase, but she indicated that she could not talk in detail as she was a Council employee. No further information was received from Mrs Green during the study. 	Review the suggested list of places during the next stage of the heritage study if this proceeds.



Place	Submission Summary	Response	Recommendations
Wengenville Township and Sawmill Site	 Nothing left of former mill or town site. Problems with visitor safety due to people entering the property, most likely because of signs indicating historic site on roadside. Criticism of suggestion for improved parking facilities, particularly as there is 'nothing to look at'. Problem with potential blocks on development in the future. 	 There is a considerable amount of material still extant associated with the former mill. Most of it is rubble, but some material appears in situ e.g. concrete tank. The buildings and other structures associated with the town have been removed. However, archaeological potential remains, as well as the general landform and location of the former town. It was unusual in the region to have a town built exclusively to serve a sawmill and any remnant of this is significant. There is demonstrated association with the site (reflected in the erection of interpretative signs and the 2013 reunion). The town and mill sites offer interpretative potential. Improved interpretative signage illustrating the former town and mill (and therefore demonstrating the loss of fabric) may in fact assist preventing unauthorised entry on to the property. Other points not related to the significance of the place. However, development would not be impeded by the significance of the place. The history and use of the site would be a consideration as part of the planning process. 	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register.
Nanango Railway Complex	Supports the listing.	• N/A	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register.



Place	Submission Summary	Response	Recommendations
Our Lady Help of Christians Catholic Church	 Do not require a heritage listing to maintain the church. Listing will increase cost of repairs (20% premium). Restrict available tradespeople because of heritage requirements. Similar to 100s of other churches. Size of boundary will restrict potential future development, particularly affecting St Patrick's School. 	 Does not directly address the statement of significance. Heritage listing is recognising significance of the church in the region's history. Regarding cost of repairs and tradespeople, it is possible that the author of the submission has confused the listing with higher levels of heritage listing. A local listing does not require special maintenance or tradespeople (over and above the current approach to such a building). The heritage boundary can be reduced to incorporate only the church and manse (and fence), alleviating concern about the extent of the listing. 	Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register following the reduction of the boundary to include only the church and manse. Proceed with the entry of the
Corridor	 Not a definitive submission. Likely possibility of objection. 	Does not address the statement of significance.	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register.
Marshlands Homestead	 Maintaining a heritage property onerous and costly. Losing development rights. No benefit to the owner and business. More compliance requirements, when already overwhelmed by these. Argues the special association is only for a limited area, not the wider South Burnett. One of only a handful of private properties recommended for entry to the register. Heritage boundary excessive. 	 Regarding association: The submission appears to concur with criterion h. The idea of a 'limited area' does not apply (or this would be the case for any place in the local government area). The place is located in the South Burnett region; any place in the region is therefore significant to the region. The heritage boundary can be reduced to a much smaller boundary that only surrounds the house and immediate grounds. The other concerns are appreciated, but are not based on evidence. Maintenance is not affected by the listing. Development rights are not lost. There are no additional compliance requirements. Other properties that are privately owned have also been nominated for entry to the local heritage register. 	Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register following the reduction of the boundary to only include the house and immediate grounds.



Place	Submission Summary	Response	Recommendations
Wondai Masonic Lodge	 Object to the listing, primarily due to concerns regarding: Loss of control over management. Upgrading. Future use of the building and property in general, especially if the place is entered on the Queensland Heritage Register. 	 Does not address the statement of significance. Management of the building is not lost due to the heritage listing. Upgrading of the building in the future can be considered, subject to assessment of impact on the building's significance. The site offers opportunity for expansion and development, also subject to assessment of impact on the building's significance. The State listing process is entirely separate to the local heritage process. The State will make a decision based entirely on the significance of a place to Queensland, if it chooses to do so. Entry on the local heritage register does not change this. 	Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register.
Kumbia Memorial School of Arts Hall	Does not object to the listing.	• N/A	Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register.
Carroll Cottage	 Does not object to the listing. However, request minor changes to two criteria. 	The citation for the place is based on the Queensland Heritage Register entry. Any changes will need to be made by the State.	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register. Recommend the owner (or Council on their behalf) contact the State regarding suggested changes to the statement of significance.
Kingaroy Railway Precinct	Objects to the listing.	 The reason for the objection appears to be tied to potential development on some of the land in the future. Given the significance of the railway to Kingaroy (and future development as part of a rail trail) it is important that the former railway corridor is entered into the register to assist with development applications and future planning. 	Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register.



Place	Submission Summary	Response	Recommendations
Anderson's Tramway	Supports the listing.	• N/A	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register.
St Paul's Lutheran Church site, Cemetery and Hall	 Supports the listing. Suggested minor changes to the citation during one-on-one meeting. 	The changes should be made to the citation.	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register, subject to amendments as suggested by the owner.
Trinity Evangelical Congregation Church site and Cemetery	Supports the listing.	• N/A	 Proceed with the entry of the place in the local heritage register, subject to amendments as suggested by the owner.



3 Recommendation

3.1 Conclusion

In conclusion:

- There have been eighteen (18) submissions from a total of 78 places notified.
- Submissions therefore represented 23% of the total places notified.
- Of these:
 - Eight (8) were against the listing of a place.
 - Seven (7) supported the listing of a place.
 - The remaining three (3) included submissions requesting additional places for entry, addressed only part of a place or were not definitive.
- Thus, submissions *against* listing constituted only 10% of the total places notified, with submissions in *support* effectively the same percentage.
- In general, this is an excellent outcome for the notification phase of the study.

3.2 Recommendations

The following general recommendations apply following a review of submissions.

- It is in Converge's opinion that all of the places notified for entry to the local heritage register should be adopted by Council, including those for which submissions were received.
- Some places should nonetheless be modified as per the comments in the previous table before adoption.

